MINUTES OF MEETING TURTLE RUN
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT


A regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Turtle Run Community Development District was held on Monday, July 11, 2022 at 6:00 p.m. at Governmental Management Services, 5385 N. Nob Hill Rd., Sunrise, Florida 33351.
Present and constituting a quorum:
Skip Carney	Chairman
Lance Morgan	Vice Chairman
Chris Kapish	Assistant Secretary
Zaida Karnegis	Assistant Secretary (via telecommunication)
Michael Hohl	Assistant Secretary Also present were:
Julio Padilla Michael Pawelczyk Patrick Szozda Patrick Burgess Jonathan Geiger Patricia Morgan Lynn Kapish Parker Maiman
 Governmental Management Services District Counsel
GMS GMS
District Engineer Resident Resident
Cypress Point POA


FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS	Roll Call
Mr. Carney called the meeting to order, and Mr. Padilla called the roll.


SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS
Mr. Carney led a moment of silence.
 Moment of Silence


THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS	Pledge of Allegiance
Mr. Carney led the Pledge of Allegiance.


FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS	Good News
Mr. Carney: Good news, Mike, anything to say, anything to add? Mr. Hohl: Nothing at this time.
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Mr. Carney: Lance?
Mr. Morgan: It started to rain in Turtle Run so that is good news. Mr. Carney: Rain is good.
Mr. Carney: Chris?
Mr. Kapish: Nothing.
Mr. Carney: Zaida, anything you want to share with us? Ms. Karnegis: No, nothing right now, thank you.

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS	Public Comment
Mr. Carney: Public comments, we have public here tonight. Anybody want to share anything with us? Ok.

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS	Approval of the Minutes of the
June 13, 2022 Meeting
Mr. Carney: The approval of the minutes for the June 13, 2022 meeting.
Everyone had a chance to look at them in their iPad. Can I have a motion to approve, please?
On MOTION by Mr. Hohl seconded by Mr. Morgan with all in favor, the Minutes of the June 13, 2022 Meeting were approved.
file_0.bin



SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS	Public Hearing to Adopt the
Fiscal Year 2023 Budget
	Motion to Open the Public Hearing

Mr. Carney: Public hearing to adopt fiscal year 2023 budget, can I have a motion to open the public hearing please?
On MOTION by Mr. Hohl seconded by Mr. Morgan with all in favor, the public hearing was opened.



	Public Comment and Discussion

Mr. Carney: Public comment and discussion, Mike, do you want to help walk me through this a little bit here?
Mr. Pawelczyk: I think you are looking for public comment and discussion on the proposed budget. It was adopted. There is no increase in the assessment, correct Julio?
Mr. Padilla: Correct.
Mr. Pawelczyk: It is the same as last year. That is what you are really looking for is any comment on budgetary items from the public. If there are none, the Board can move on to the items and the resolutions.
Mr. Hohl: Julio, this is taking into consideration any anticipated increases on our vendor contracts?
Mr. Padilla: That is correct, including BrightView's.
Mr. Morgan: My question would be, Julio, how much have you anticipated vendor increases to be, gas has gone up, everything has gone up? Do you anticipate or whoever looked at the budget anticipate that 0% increase is going to cover all expenditures for next year?
Mr. Padilla: It will cover within the current budget same as the proposed budget. For example, I believe BrightView is going to provide an amendment to change their contract with a 16% increase.
Mr. Morgan: How much is that in dollars?
Mr. Padilla: They haven't provided that information yet. They just verbally told us. Mr. Carney: $36,000 roughly.
Mr. Padilla: Thank you.
Mr. Morgan: They are increasing it to $36,000? Mr. Carney: $36,464, yes.
Mr. Morgan: And that is just one vendor.
Mr. Carney: Right. Jennifer had looked into all the vendors that we use and all the vendors that are used elsewhere. The only increase from any vendor was BrightView across the Board, pest control and nobody has increased their prices.
Mr. Morgan: Mike?
Mr. Pawelczyk: We haven't increased our rates here in years. Mr. Morgan: Did GMS increase their rate?
Mr. Padilla: Solitude increased 7%, Solitude, the lake company. That is already included.
Mr. Morgan: GMS is not increasing its? Mr. Padilla: I don't think so.
Mr. Pawelczyk: I think when we talked about the proposed budget, GMS indicated that even with those increases, you could absorb those within your current assessment amount.
Mr. Morgan: Yes, that is why we agreed to initiate that. Mr. Pawelczyk: Correct.
Mr. Kapish: Where is that money coming from exactly because you are absorbing it, it is not like it comes out of the sky, so it does come from someplace, so where exactly does the money get taken from?
Mr. Carney: There were some contingencies in there that were reduced. COi was always in there as an $80,000 budget line item. That was reduced. We haven't spent
$80,000 in years. That was reduced to $57,000. So there was $20,000 there. That is where that came from. Most of that came from the line items that were a little bit inflated over the years.
Mr. Kapish: So, the projects that we have that were completed, that money that could have been used for that is now being used for the increase in BrightView's contract.
Mr. Carney: The line item is just going to bring it to more of an accuracy.
Mr. Kapish: I am talking about the construction. I am talking about the capital improvement fund.
Mr. Hohl: I believe those monies are already encumbered. I don't think that changed at all.
Mr. Kapish: I am not saying that it has been changed, I said when you take money from someplace else, it has to come from someplace else.
Mr. Pawelczyk: It does not come from your capital account.
Mr. Kapish: It may not have come from the capital account, but it came from someplace else, and if we thought those line items were inflated and not used, why couldn't that money be switched into the capital improvement projects so we can get some projects done?
Mr. Pawelczyk: This was all discussed in the proposed budget. You can't increase assessments today.
Mr. Kapish: No, I wouldn't do that obviously, but I think that the misconception was back at that point when we set the budget hearing. I don't think that everybody understood that you could always decrease it at this moment in time, but you could have it at a higher amount to accommodate some of the things that were missing.
Mr. Carney: We have a balanced budget.
Mr. Kapish: Every budget is balanced Skip, that is not the point. The point of the matter is that we are obviously taking some money from someplace and putting it in to pay a bill and that is less money that the COD has to spend on capital projects.
Mr. Carney: Spend it on what?
Mr. Kapish: Unfinished projects that we have.
Mr. Hohl: I think that all the projects that we have on the table today are in progress and monies have been encumbered for them. There are no other projects that the Board has approved to fund at this point.
Mr. Kapish: We do have incomplete projects we haven't acknowledged.
Mr. Hohl: I think all the projects that the Board has approved have either been completed or are currently in process, and all the monies that were budgeted are still encumbered to be able to fund those projects through completion.
A resident: What projects are you talking about that are currently in process?
Mr. Hohl: One of the projects is the secondary wall monument walls. We had the primary entrance on Turtle Run Boulevard funded through the bond project as well as streetlights and signage but for the other monument walls there wasn't any money left in the bond to do that. Rather than take out another bond, we voted to refurbish the walls that we have for substantially less money, so we are in the process of refurbishing those walls and changing the signs out to a more modern sign that meets the current codes. We are waiting for approval from the City on a permit to begin with that. We have already upgraded all the electric at all nine monument walls and if you haven't already noticed at nighttime the lights are on at those entrances. Then once we get the sign permit, then we will take the old signs down. We will clean and seal the brick walls and then we will clean and polish the copper caps. Then we will put the new sign in. The sign is going to be backlit with LED lighting in the lettering of the sign. Eventually, once that is all done, then we will come back and spruce up the landscaping as needed. All of that is going to be
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done within our normal budget without having to add another bond project for the taxpayers.
Ms. Patricia Morgan: My name is Patricia Morgan. I am running for seat #3 this next election. I was wondering what about the brick walls? Both sides of Turtle Run Boulevard are incomplete. Are we going to have a community that is complete? This has been going on for about 8 or 10 years. On 41st Street going towards the school on the opposite side, it is still incomplete. Are those ever going to be complete?
Mr. Hohl: The only way that those projects would happen would have to come through another bond. The Board at this point did not want to impose another bond project on the taxpayers in Turtle Run given the current economy and the increase in inflation. We did not think that would be prudent at this time to raise taxes to start new projects so that is why we didn't do that.
Mr. Morgan: We never had a discussion about another new bond. Some Board members seem to think that other Board members are going to try to push through another bond for whatever reasons. I was told that by Mr. Shipe, that two Board members went and talked to him about that. He told me that two Board members were at his house, and correct me if I am wrong, anyway the walls have not been finished. We talked to somebody about possibly just to talk to them about a bond, but we never voted one way or the other, or this Board as far as I can remember had a serious discussion about another bond. I did talk to Mr. Shipe, and he told me that two Board members were at his house. You might know something about that. Skip may know something about that and had that discussion with him. I don't know, but the problem is the wall from 43rd South is half completed. The wall on the other side of the street was never stopped, so that is a problem we are going to have to deal with. Not this year, maybe but maybe next year. I know that Patricia Morgan over there has been talking to some neighbors that live against that Boulevard and they are all a little perturbed or anxious that they may not get a wall. Every single one of those residents, have you been over there talking to those residents?
Mr. Hohl: Let me ask you this just to respond to what you just said. When you refer to Patricia Morgan, you are speaking of your wife?
Mr. Morgan: Yes. She is running for a Board seat here. Mr. Hohl: On the same Board that you are on?
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Mr. Morgan: Yes. It is perfectly legal. Counsel, can you address that? Mr. Hohl: Just wanted to make that clear.
Mr. Pawelczyk: I would be very happy to. Mr. Morgan: Go ahead Mike.
Mr. Hohl: To clarify, we did have lengthy discussions about another bond project. In fact, Chris Kapish even asked to have a study done to be able to show whether or not we could do a bond project.
Mr. Kapish: That is an incorrect statement. I didn't ask for a study to be done. I asked to speak to Rhonda Mossing who deals with bonds and is a bond agent just to ask questions informational, fact-finding questions. Actually, to tell you the truth, it even came to the Board to get approval for me to speak, I have a right to speak to anybody really, but the bottom line is that because it was an issue, we got permission to speak to her. That is all I did was speak to her. It was a five-minute discussion and that was all it really was. It wasn't a deep discussion like some people are implying here on the Board that there was a real serious consideration for a bond which is absolutely absurd. As any good governmental body, they examine all of their options. If you don't examine any options other than what one person wants to do, that is not really putting all five heads together, that is basically following the mother duck and listening to whatever they say.
Mr. Hohl: I think if you look back at the minutes, the records will reflect that you did bring up the bond issue at several meetings, and in fact when you were Chair at one meeting when we were supposed to be discussing the budget, all you wanted to talk about was the bond. When we did not want to talk about the bond, we said we need to talk about the budget, you ended the meeting. The record will reflect that. You can deny that, but the record does reflect that.
Mr. Kapish: I am not going to argue with you.
Mr. Hohl: I think the sentiment at least of this Board member, and I don't want to speak for the other Board members is I don't have an appetite for raising taxes to build walls that at the time cost $65,000 per yard to put the wall in when some of those neighbors didn't want the wall. Now you sit here wanting to ask whether or not we are going to complete projects, well right now, I don't know if we have the money. I know we don't have the money to do it short of another multi-million bond which we have already
discussed that we are not in favor of moving forward with a bond at this point. I don't know what you are trying to say here, but as far as I am concerned, the bond issue is something that is not appropriate for this particular time in this economy and if you want to move forward with that, that is your prerogative as a Board member, but as far as I am concerned, I am totally against that.
Mr. Kapish: Did we move forward with that bond Mr. Mike?
Mr. Hohl: No we didn't because we did not want to hear anything more about a
bond.
Mr. Kapish: Ok, because we really didn't discuss it, that is why we didn't move
forward.
Mr. Hohl: I disagree with you and the record will reflect such. Mr. Kapish: Ok, you have that perspective.
Mr. Hohl: All I will say is go back to the minutes of the meeting when we were discussing the budget a year or two ago. I forget exactly which meeting it was, but there were several meetings that we were talking about a bond and if I remember correctly in that same discussion, you were talking about rebuilding the secondary walls for the tune of $350,000 apiece and that would have entailed tearing down the walls, building a wall to current code which would be half the size of the current wall, and instead of doing that we were up for a proposal to use budgeted monies outside of a bond to refurbish the walls for a total of less than $180,000 for all nine walls where one wall would have been
$350,000. I believe when we first discussed that you even made the statement that it is going to cost $70,000 a wall to refurbish and that doesn't even include electric. The record will show and the bids that were received will show that all of the walls are being completed within that $180,000 budget or whatever the final number was that we approved. To say that what happened to the bond projects we completed, everything that we could with the bond money that was available, and now that money is gone. The only way to add additional projects for instant building additional walls along Turtle Run Boulevard or changing the monument walls at the other entrances would be to take out another bond, which I don't believe is the right thing to do in this economy to raise taxes for things that are not crucial to keeping Turtle Run looking nice.
Mr. Pawelczyk: Or you can increase assessments, can't do it this year, it is too late, but you could increase assessments to provide for that capital project.
Mr. Hohl: Which would be substantial either way whether it is a bond project or annual assessment increases, either way, the taxes would go up to pay for that.
Mr. Pawelczyk: That would be correct.
Mr. Kapish: Mike, let me correct something that you are not aware of, you weren't on the Board at the time, but when we got the bond, we actually got a lower amount than what we needed to have to complete all these projects. That was because certain Board members didn't want to go for the higher figure versus like whatever it was because we had the money to actually not raise taxes when we did this bond without raising taxes, so taxes haven't been raised since 2015. Actually, our budget here is on a 2015 level but we are in 2022. That is seven years, no taxes raised, and that included a $6,000,000 bond. I think that is a pretty good record for being able to do that. I don't think you could match that against any city or any other governmental body to be able to do that kind of work with that little money.
Mr. Morgan: When we passed the bond for residents that don't know, we didn't raise taxes to pay the monthly premium for the payments for the bond. We had enough carryover money to cover the bond payments, so taxes haven't been raised since 2015. That is an absolutely true statement. Was that the year you moved in?
Mr. Hohl: Yes, and I also say that with the bond projects we ran out of money, and we were fortunate that the City of Coral Springs decided to do some of the roads that we had originally slated to do, or we wouldn't have been able to complete all the roads. The main entrance at Turtle Run Boulevard and Sample Road had so many cost overruns that the final price tag was $1,300,000 which is way inflated. That was then. If we tried to do projects today with the cost of construction we will be looking at astronomical increases. Another reason why now is not the time to be doing new capital projects is that the cost of construction is out of control. It is going to be that way for a while. For us to jump into new projects right now I don't believe it is a prudent thing to do. Maybe sometime in the future that will be something we can look at, but to do it now, I think we will be unnecessarily raising taxes and we probably still would not get the best bang for our buck because of our cost of construction.
Mr. Morgan: We haven't raised taxes this year but some of the residents have expressed concerns that we haven't finished the wall and that was the whole point of this conversation. As Mike, our counsel has already said this year's budget is already set. We can't do anything with this. This is water under the bridge.
Mr. Pawelczyk: I just want to correct that statement. I don't have the budget in front of me, but if there is money in the capital account, you could use that money for a wall if you wanted to.
Mr. Morgan: Right we have $500,000 or $600,000 in the capital improvement fund right now and that was the point. I don't know what we are going to use that for. The capital improvement money as you know is to be used and not just sit in a bank. We have maintenance items that we have money that comes in every year for maintenance items which are trees or whatever it might be, but the capital improvement money is not my money, it is taxpayer's money and that was billed to them for capital improvements.
Mr. Kapish: You are right, we need to go back to the original statement, but the walls were all included in the bond project, but we didn't know prices, what the prices would be because we knew that prices could change and the only prices we knew 100% was going to be was the light posts. Those were the only things we absolutely knew 100%. Everything else was guesstimates. Somebody gives you a price, we base the bond based upon that price. Those prices and you threw out the term of $350,000, I don't know where you got that from because I don't know a contractor that ever proposed a proposal for it. Being on the bond list doesn't mean that is what it costs.
Mr. Carney: That came from the architect.
Mr. Kapish: That was a guesstimate Skip. Unless you have somebody come in here today and give you a price on an entrance feature or anything else, a wall or whatever other improvements there is, you don't really know. Nobody knows, so to sit here and throw figures out, what this and what that is, is being disingenuous. Going back to the original question of the resident here or the taxpayer here, the original question was when we are going to finish these things. This issue about the bond is a false narrative being pushed and it really needs to stop because that is not what is happening here. Nobody suggested and I can tell you this, I voted for the budget. I didn't vote against the budget.
Mr. Carney: Where is all the money going to come from?
Mr. Kapish: That is exactly what five people need to figure out here Skip. It is a Community Development District; it is not a Community Maintenance District.
Mr. Hohl: Let the record show that according to Tamara Peacock, the estimate that she gave us for the secondary walls was $358,600.87.
Mr. Kapish: And where did she get that from?
Mr. Hohl: That is the architect that we were using at the time. Mr. Kapish: Where did she get that, she is not a builder.
Mr. Hohl: That is where I got that figure from.
Mr. Kapish: Ok. That is not from a credible source.
Mr. Hohl: Not from a credible source, yet that was the architect that we used to design the front wall and you suggested that we used to redo the other walls, and now you are saying she is not a credible source?
Mr. Kapish: She is an architect; she is pulling figures. Where did she pull the figures from, I don't know? You don't know. Nobody here knows ok. I don't know why you are blaming me.
Mr. Hohl: You are the one that is making the statement that she is not a credible source and yet she was the architect we used.
Mr. Kapish: I have been saying that all along you are throwing out numbers that are not credible.
Mr. Hohl: That is the estimate that we were given.
Mr. Kapish: It also depends on what size you are doing. She did a rendering of a general entrance feature. We are talking about entrance features here. The question goes back to the privacy walls that were never completed by the builder and that is what the Community Development District is doing is completing things that were never put in that people who moved into the community expected. We are actually benefiting from people who have already paid for all this stuff. Anybody that moves in here is going to benefit from it. It is a community that is supped to be upscale. I guess you moved into the community because you thought it was an upscale nice community yourself. Am I wrong?
Mr. Hohl: And I am paying the same rate that everybody else is paying.
Mr. Kapish: No, you are not. I am paying more than you are paying to the COD because I have a bigger lot. I am paying more but I don't get anymore.
Mr. Hohl: I am paying for the same per square footage that you are paying.
Mr. Kapish: Yes, I have more square footage and just like the businesses like Walmart who have a large piece of property are paying more than anybody. All the businesses here come out to about 59% for paying taxes. Instead of arguing and this is not getting us anywhere by arguing all this stuff, playing politics is not really resolving anything. We are not a Board that is taking care of and moving on and progressing here. Mr. Hohl: I don't know, it seems like I am pointing to factual information that was presented to this Board and you are someone now trying to say that it doesn't mean
anything.
Mr. Kapish: I am not saying that it is not factual. Mr. Hohl: You are the one that is arguing.
Mr. Kapish: I am not arguing, I am trying to clarify.
Mr. Hohl: I clarified it for you. It is on her paperwork that she sent us. Mr. Kapish: I understand.
Mr. Hohl: It has her name right on the top there.
Ms. Morgan: Is there any possibility in the next decade that I can tell the neighbors that have been waiting for over a decade to complete, is that ever going to happen?
Mr. Hohl: I think that sometime in the future when the economy levels off. Ms. Morgan: Is that going to be five years or ten years?
Mr. Hohl: I don't know that anybody can answer that question tonight.
Ms. Morgan: So, I have to go back and tell them that they have an impossible solution for this ever to be completed at the present time.
Mr. Hohl: No, I think what you can do is you can go back and tell the neighbors that we are taking care of the community within the budgeted amount that has been approved without raising taxes and we are keeping Turtle Run looking nice. Any additional projects will require additional revenues which means higher taxes for the homeowners.
Ms. Morgan: So does any of the money from the capital improvement funds go to this wall?
Mr. Morgan: It could.
Mr. Hohl: What we have to do as a Board is we have to look at what our budgeted amount is for that year. We have maintenance items that need to be taken care of, for instance, Lance had just worked with BrightView to replace several trees and that is within our budget to do that. We are constantly maintaining things that keep it looking nice. When we add capital things, if that is not in the budget, then we are going to have to find the money somewhere. The amount of money that would require for those walls is a lot more than what we currently have in the budget.
Ms. Morgan: My question is, is it money from our maintenance for the improvement, or is it different funds because maintenance is maintenance and improvements are above and beyond. So, are you taking money from improvements to pay for maintenance items?
Mr. Carney: Right now we have $650,000 in the capital improvement fund. Mr. Morgan: That is the total amount that we have.
Ms. Morgan: Out of that money comes $150,000 for the walls? Mr. Hohl: Yes, that has already been encumbered.
Ms. Morgan: That is already paid for so there is still $650,000? Mr. Carney: Right.
Mr. Morgan: Any capital improvement project would come from that. We have
$700,000 built into our budget, I don't know the exact amount for trees and regular maintenance items on a yearly basis and that type of thing. Sometimes we have to take money out of the capital improvement fund or other areas to pay for some other projects that might come up, a broken pump or whatever it might be, but capital improvements are for capital improvements. If a pump breaks, a big enough pump, it should come out of the maintenance budget, but capital improvements should go for capital improvements, that is why it is called a capital improvement. You shouldn't be using capital improvement money for routine maintenance on a daily basis, on trees, or pumps.
Mr. Hohl: It would be used for capital items that need to be replaced. That is what capital improvements do.
Mr. Pawelczyk: All we are doing today is setting a max level assessment is really what you are doing. You are basically keeping the assessments the same. As you know you can amend the budget at any time to move line items around, so to answer your
question, if you have $500,000 in capital improvements and oh my God, we need to take
$100,000 out of that and move it to another line item, this Board can vote to do that during the course of the year.
Mr. Hohl: One of the things just so that you know, because you may not be aware
of this, is the Board voted quite a while ago to finish the ongoing projects before we started any new projects, that way we could be ready for unforeseen cost, increases and of course with this economy that obviously is possible, but we wanted to get everything done and then see where we were to see what the next projects might be that we would take on using the capital monies that we have. What is your name?
Ms. Kapish: Lynn Kapish. I just wanted to clarify because what I am hearing here is I think we are on the same page, but we are just not seeing it through the same perspective. I don't think anybody is advocating for higher taxes or any increased budgets. I know I am not. No one wants increased taxes, but having been to dozens of these meetings in the past and knowing what has been going on living in this community for the last 30 years, I know that when you put some human minds together, ingenuity, discussion, comradeship, friendship all working the same goals like we did the last time with all the street poles, I know it took literally decades trying to get those street lamps in from the builder's hard work and putting your heads together and none of those years did anyone want to raise taxes. I know when good people get together and work toward a common goal just like with the last bond, no taxes were raised. They found a way to get all that money to get all the improvements we needed that we are enjoying today without raising our taxes. I think possibly we are all on the same page where we want our neighborhood to look beautiful, we want our neighborhood to continue to be one of the very few neighborhoods in South Florida that looks better now than it did 30 years ago. Not many neighborhoods can say that. I think that we can all do that if we work together and stop playing blame and stop thinking about ways that we are different but start thinking about how we are together. If it can be done before with $6,000,000 or
$8,000,000 in a bond and no taxes were raised, that is incredible. How do we put our minds together and look for solutions instead of just saying it can't be done? That is what I think I want to clarify because I think listening to this meeting, it sounds like you guys all love Turtle Run but some of you are maybe afraid to do anything to improve it because
of financial ties which I understand and some of you have been on the Board so long and used to negotiating and putting your heads together that somehow problems get solved. It doesn't have it involve raising taxes. No one wants that. I don't want that.
Mr. Hohl: I think that the Board has done a good job of maintaining Turtle Run. Turtle Run looks better than it ever has and that is a reflection of all of the Board members working together with GMS. We went through the loss of our manager for Turtle Run that had been the manager since the beginning of Turtle Run and we have brought up to speed the new management. They are keeping Turtle Run looking nice because for a while, there were things were starting to look shabby. The secondary entrances were dark at night, everything was falling apart, and we are addressing those issues. At the end of the day, we have to be fiscally responsible to spend the money where it needs to be spent, and then when we have additional monies available, look to the community and say ok, what is it that you want? Is there anything more that needs to be done, but just to spend money for the sake of spending it or adding a wall or adding a feature or whatever it is just because one or two people said they want it doesn't necessarily mean that is what everybody wants. I know that maybe in your case that is something that you want, but we have to look at everybody. I know the neighbors that I talk to, they don't have an appetite for higher taxes.
A resident: Nobody does.
Mr. Hohl: They don't necessarily agree with the walls along Turtle Run Boulevard.
Mr. Carney: The projects in question are going to take a substantial tax increase or a bond because they are that expensive.
Mr. Pawelczyk: Or you can save money over a number of years.
Mr. Morgan: Mike keeps throwing out the big boogie man of tax increase and bonds and that type of thing. No one is for taxes raised. We don't have much money. We have
$650,000 in the capital improvement fund but you also have to recognize that there are projects getting done, the nine entrance features we are working on that. We have already appropriated money for that. That money is already set aside. There are a few other minor tidbits like street signs and a few other tidbits, but we still have $650,000 of capital improvement funds that we can spend on certain things. We don't necessarily have to raise any taxes, but we need to move forward with finishing the nine monument signs. It
takes time. The signs are with the City of Coral Springs right now. They have rejected it several times. I guess they are in the process of being approved. I don't know what they quite look like with the City rearranging a couple of things from our original design and I guess we are going to vote on it tonight, I am not sure if that is going to be the final issue, but we do still have $650,000 capital improvement and we can spend that on capital improvements. Nobody is talking about raising taxes except for one person. Mike is throwing out we are going to raise taxes. I don't plan on raising any taxes. What I do plan to do is finish some of the projects that we have like unfinished walls. I am not talking about my side of the street or the east side of Turtle Run Boulevard as it goes from the school down, but on the west side we probably need to finish those four or five houses. I don't know what that would cost. We would have to get an estimate for that, but it could cost the entire amount if you take his figure of $60,000 a lot.
Mr. Carney: That side of the street agreeing to do it, all the neighbors?
Mr. Morgan: We talked to some neighbors, and they are a little anxious and don't know why it hasn't been done yet. I explained that to them and we explained to them that there have been some issues like we talked about tonight.
Mr. Carney: We don't want to do two houses and then skip one house and do the
next.
Mr. Morgan: That is something we have to work through. Yes, I don't want to do
that, but we haven't tried to do any of it. We are sitting on $650,000 of taxpayer money and we haven't done any of it. Have you gone out and talked to the neighbors that don't have a wall?
Mr. Carney: No.
Mr. Hohl: The reason why we didn't finish it was because the neighbors that were left didn't want the wall. In fact, one put up a brand-new PVC fence.
A resident: Those are the old neighbors.
Mr. Kapish: The previous owners did that. Actually, some of the problems were not that they don't want them, is some of the problems were they felt their pool was too close and all kinds of stuff. What they really wanted to do is find out exactly where the wall is. There was a gentleman Mr. Costa who didn't want the wall. The other people on both sides of him wanted the wall. As soon I went out there and helped them lay out the wall
according to his survey, I think when Jonathan went out there and put out stakes and showed people where the wall would be and that type of thing, it was a matter of working through something instead of just being negative and saying we can't do this. A lot of people when they say they don't want something is because they are not aware of how it is going to work out. That is what is lacking here is a positiveness of trying to work things out for the betterment of the community and not just be negative. The bottom line is you have an unfinished community that doesn't look good if it doesn't look consistent. It is just like everybody having different mailboxes in the community. That is why everybody has the same mailbox because there is an HOA, and it looks better if everybody has the same mailbox.
Mr. Hohl: I still say spending $65,000 a house is exorbitant when you think about what a normal fence would cost. That is a lot of money.
Mr. Kapish: Until a contractor gives us a proposal, I don't know how much it costs.
That is a fact.
Mr. Hohl: That is how much it did cost.
Mr. Kapish: I don't know how much it is going to cost today and I don't know how much it is going to cost next year, but I think the issues are and what they are asking and what they are trying to get at is that if all they are hearing is no, no, no and it is something we are going to have to raise for it, and that is what they are hearing from you. They are not hearing anything for the future in a big perspective of maybe yeah, we can't do it this year, but we are going to put some money away and then we will take a look at next year. At the end of the day, your city taxes are going to go up. Our city taxes went up $200 this past year and $300 the year before. That is $500 my city taxes went up which all that money is going to go someplace else in the city. Every dollar that is taxed here in Turtle Run stays in Turtle Run. It doesn't go anywhere else; it stays in Turtle Run and that is the benefit. If you want to live in a nice community it is going to cost some· money, let's be honest. If you want to live in a Margate community type thing, then you are not going to spend any money. Part of the agreement Mike, Lance you might remember this, we discussed it a lot because the amount wasn't right because some people tried to pooh pooh it instead of doing it right, we said we were going to take the money we had on our construction fund and add it to the bond. That is exactly what it was supposed to be to
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get everything done. It was supposed to be zeroed out and it is not being zeroed out. The purpose of the Board is to tax and spend. That is the purpose of the Board is, is to increase people's property values and make the community nice. That is what our job is. Our job is not like saving money. What I am trying to say is saving money is good, that is why you get different proposals. We didn't get any proposals on the signs that you and Skip went down to Signarama to look at. I made a request to say let's look at some other stuff. I was basically pushed away. Nobody wanted to hear anything. All you wanted to do is do what you guys picked out. You didn't want to hear what anybody else had to say about it. Why didn't we get three proposals on signs? Why did we only go to Signarama? That is not the normal course of business that the District goes through. Even if it is under the amount, it is always good to get proposals from other people and other ideas, but no other ideas were entertained. I don't understand that to this day.
Mr. Hohl: And did you do that with all the other bond projects? Mr. Kapish: Yes we did.
Mr. Hohl: Let me ask you this Jonathan or Julio, what was the original cost estimate for the main entrance monument walls when we started the project?
Mr. Geiger: In the bond?
Mr. Hohl: What was quoted to us?
Mr. Geiger: I don't know off the top of my head? Mr. Hohl: $750,000?
Mr. Kapish: There were three estimates given to the Board. Mr. Hohl: So we went from $750,000 to $1,300,000.
Mr. Kapish: We took the lowest bid Mike.
Mr. Morgan: I could be mistaken about this, but I thought it was $700,000 a side. I could be wrong on that.
Mr. Hohl: No.
Mr. Morgan: You are telling me with the fountain?
Mr. Carney: The total cost on both sides with everything, with the cost overruns and everything included was $1,300,000, if you divide that by 2 you get $650,000 a side.
Mr. Morgan: We voted for that the Board did, and we had it built. It didn't work out the way we wanted, but if I remember right the Board voted on that. I know when Hall
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Fountains came and said our design doesn't work, the Board again voted for a value added for $14,000 to get our fountain to work.
Mr. Carney: There was also value added to seal it.
Mr. Carney: I want to go over some of these budgets. When you hear that we haven't raised taxes and we haven't done this, and we haven't done that, you go back to 2011 when the original bond was paid off, we took the $675,000 and we rolled that right into our capital improvement line items. That year we raised 72%.
Mr. Kapish: Can you repeat that again?
Mr. Carney: Through the operating maintenance per acre was $3,007. In 2011 it went up to $5,174 with an increase of $2,166.76, so when we rolled that bond money from the old bond into our general fund or capital improvement line item, we raised taxes 72% that year alone. Then you add that with the 16.7. 15.8 and 15% we raised taxes 119.5% in 13 years, that is an average 9.2% every year.
Mr. Carney: How do you raise taxes if you never increase the budget?
Mr. Pawelczyk: You did increase the budget. Remember you stopped the bond payment so that is how you increase your budget because the bond payment, there are two separate assessments. You have a debt assessment and an O&M assessment so your debt assessment is set, so once that was gone, because it was paid off, the Board at that time said we are going to raise assessments up to that total amount to keep that
$675,000 and use it for all the capital improvements that needed to be done because at that time, and I recall this, we didn't contemplate issuing a bond at that time until the interest rates were favorable we put together that, we meaning the Board, put together the engineer's reports with all the project lists to take advantage of basically the cheap money that was out there.
Mr. Carney: Over the 13 years leading up to when we took out the bond, the average was 9.2% was what we raised every year. That is what that adds up to. When did we say we haven't raised taxes?
Mr. Morgan: We didn't raise taxes period that year what we did though, we did have a windfall because we didn't have the bond payment anymore and we kept that money to fund capital improvements. If you go back and look at those years, those are the years that you go the 55 horsepower pumps. In Lake Katie, that is the year that you
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got the 25 horsepower, so it is not a tax increase. We had more operating capital, you are right because we paid off debt so if you want to call that a tax increase, you go ahead which you were against at that time. That is not a tax increase. We had more operating capital because we didn't have the bond payment. Why Skip? Because we paid off the bond. Your fuzzy math right here isn't working with me. You know it is not true. This is beneath you and beneath Mike, because Mike is sitting here quoting your numbers. Unbelievable. You are telling us we raised taxes 72%, there is something wrong with you if you are going to sit here and tell me that I raised taxes 72%. Mike you know that is BS.
Mr. Hohl: I think you can calm down a little bit.
Mr. Morgan: Call it BS if you are an honest man. I didn't think you were. Mike unbelievable. These two are colluding against this Board. You are violating the Sunshine law numerous times when going to Signarama when you know it is going to come up to a vote here at this Board. I believe I got texts from you pooh-poohing the flagpoles that we are going to vote on tonight. I am going to make a complaint on you. I got your texts right here pal telling Mr. Parker we are not going to be spend $50,000 on his flagpoles and that is why Mr. Parker is here tonight to make sure he gets his flagpoles in Cypress Pointe.
Mr. Carney: You said at the last meeting to put it on hold.
Mr. Morgan: Yes, until they work out their situation. Mr. Parker took Dustin Hoffman's spot. We put it on hold not behind the scenes texting me what we should do because you know it is coming up for a vote. You know that is wrong. That is exactly right. You guys are unbelievable. Call that out for what it is Mike, please? Just one second of honesty, call it out for what it is.
Mr. Hohl: To me it seems like the pot is calling the kettle black here.
Mr. Morgan: Yes, exactly, I thought you would say that because you have to stick up for Skip.
Mr. Carney: I didn't put these numbers together.
Mr. Kapish: That is like you saying that I have a car payment and I paid the car off. I am making the same amount of money and after I pay my car off and I have no car payment I increase my salary. No, you didn't increase your salary, because your boss never increased the amount of money.
July 11, 2022
Turtle Run CDD



Mr. Morgan: When I went to the school to reference the bond issue in front of the City Commission, you spoke for the bond. People brought up the same argument. Steve Greenbaum brought up that same argument now you are bringing up, Steve Greenbaum's argument about the 72% tax increase is not your idea. That was Steve Greenbaum's idea that he brought up at that meeting that night. Mike doesn't even know that because Mike wasn't there. Mike might not even have been a resident at that time. That is another one of our resident's arguments to pooh-pooh the bond. He told the City Commission we gave a 72% tax increase. That is not true Mike. We paid off a bill and we had no operating capital.
Mr. Hohl: What I did hear about the bond, and I wasn't here when it was voted on is the residents didn't want it. As a matter of fact, they went to the City of Coral Springs and appealed to them, and the City of Coral Springs asked for a meeting to be held and the Board was inundated with comments that they didn't want the bond and yet the Board voted for the bond anyways. That is the way I heard it.
Mr. Kapish: Of course, that is what you heard, that is not fact. There are always going to be some people that are going to be against something. When we changed our mailboxes and we put our new mailboxes in, Skip was against the mailbox, but he was one person, that doesn't mean everybody is against it. In fact, everything that you do somebody is not going to agree with it. That is the way life is, but you have to look at what the entire communities view is.
Mr. Morgan: The Board actually had the fortitude to go ahead and proceed with the bond and we did have 35 or 40 local residents show up at the meeting and push the envelope against it. However, everybody, I talk to including yourself when you walk down the Boulevard now with the $2,000,000 of streetlights, they love it. The lane squeeze that we did with the nice easy flow of traffic, they love all those improvements, you love them, I love them, and you know what most of my neighbors I talk to except for maybe a very few say you guys are great. We didn't increase their taxes because we had carryover to cover. We didn't raise taxes at all. They all said they love the light posts as much as you and I love them and all the other amenities we have in Turtle Run.
Mr. Hohl: Let me clarify something because I think you have misconstrued what I have said. First of all, what we have done in Turtle Run has been exceptional. Turtle Run
looks fantastic, and we have done it together as a Board. When I got on the Board what I saw, and I work in government, and I have for many years as an administrator and so I know budgets. I work with multi-million-dollar budgets. I work with capital projects and what I saw was I am looking at all the projects and we have X amount of dollars and then we had these projects, some of them were completed, some of them were ongoing and some of them hadn't been started yet and I made the comment at a meeting, I said looking at the figures here, it looks like we don't have enough money to finish all these projects, there might be a better way to do this rather than tearing down monument walls and rebuilding at a cost of $350,000 which was quoted to us and maybe there is a better way to do that and refurbish the walls. I think given our current budget we can do that within our current budget. It was said at that time you are crazy; you don't know what you are talking about. I let it ride for a while, then I came back, and I brought actual proposals back, and guess what, that figure of $25,000 per wall ended up $20,000 per wall instead of $358,000 per wall. All I did was say let's finish what we have, and you agreed within our current spending, and let's use the money that we do have in our budget to fix the things that we can fix so that we don't have to spend money for the sake of spending, or we don't have to take another bond. All I am saying as a Board member on this Board, it is my responsibility to make sure that we represent the residents, and we make sure that we keep Turtle Run looking well and we do it in a fiscally responsible way. As long as we are able to do that we can go back and forth and say we should have a wall or should not have a new wall here or there, but at the end of the day, it is going to come down to well do we have the money and if we don't have the money, then where are we going to get the money from. That has been my point all along.
Mr. Morgan: I appreciate all those kind words because I have been working in Turtle Run on this Board for 20 years and Chris has been for like 25 years.
Mr. Kapish: And Skip has been on the Board for 20 years himself:
Mr. Morgan: We put in a lot of hard work, and I appreciate that you appreciate all the hard work that we put in. You are a newcomer, there are some things you don't understand or some old rules and scabs that still have to be kicked a little bit and massaged so we move down the road. I am the one that got you on the Board. I am the one that told you about the opportunity for the Board. I brought you on. We needed some
fresh air on this Board absolutely and that is absolutely true. I thought he was a good candidate with experience and everything. I appreciate that you appreciate what we did in Turtle Run, but Turtle Run is basically Turtle Run because of one or two people, maybe three or four, but all the things that you love the most about it and I love about it is because of this Board and because we didn't listen to 35 or 40 vocal members at the City Commissioner. Skip got to speak, Chris, myself, and other Board members got to speak. When I said I am for the bond, people howled me down, yelled and jeered in the audience and I said my piece in front of the Commission. We all got three minutes to speak. The Commission had no power to tell us what we were going to do but we participated in their little charade, they pretend like they are concerned because some people called them. We got up and withstood the pressures of our community and everybody today likes to kiss me and hug me for the streetlights and all the things we have done in Turtle Run. I appreciate you appreciating it as a newer resident. You have been here five or six years now.
Mr. Hohl: Nine.
Mr. Morgan: But we are the ones that did all these improvements and withstood the fire of a lot of residents. There are some people here that didn't agree with the bond. Their taxes weren't raised. They paid the same amount of taxes the next year, the next year, and the next year. We had it within our budget because Chris figured out that we had paid for it with the carryover. We didn't raise anybody's taxes. As a matter of fact, I said I will not vote for taxes again for a long time, a tax increase if we get the bond because the bond should pay for it. Unfortunately, after about $8,000,000 in bonds, there are fees attached to that as you know and then engineering fees were told to me Skip over a million dollars for all these projects. Our $8,000,000 shrank quickly so we probably only spent like $6,000,000 on projects give or take with cost overruns and by the way, we added an extra 60 streetlights that we hadn't anticipated initially. Yes, we used up a lot of the bond money.
Mr. Carney: It was $7,100,000 that we had to spend on bond projects, but we did borrow the exact amount that was on the engineer's report, so the engineer's numbers were not very accurate at that time.
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Mr. Geiger: I didn't write it. Some of the contingencies we had in there were blown in one or two projects.
Mr. Morgan: The money didn't go as far as we wanted it to, so we weren't able to finish some of the projects. That is what we are talking about is continuing to finish our projects and to say sometimes you have to be bold as you know in government service to get things done. If it had folded that night at that City Commission meeting, you wouldn't have any of these projects today.
Mr. Kapish: The City Commission meeting was held for only one reason. The City Manager was Erdal. I had meetings with Erdal and the Police Chief and different people in the city and Erdal, basically, we had to go through the City Manager to do certain things and all these streets and everything and all the streets were reduced, in fact that wasn't part of the bond. In fact, the overage we talked about, the overage that we had we were able to put the fountains, but we were also able to pay for the streets to be reduced which was a traffic calming device. It was a four-lane highway with cars speeding through there. I think what we did, and I am very proud of what we did in Turtle Run. To this day it is a much better place to live than it was ten years ago. The worst thing that can happen to a community is for it to go down. That is typically what a Florida community does that doesn't have an HOA You can see some of the communities in Coral Springs, they are not places you want to live. Now the city actually pushes Turtle Run, and all those awards up there Turtle Run received. Those were awards from good hard work that was done by the Board. That City meeting as I was getting back to was a political stunt and I am telling you because Erdal, he had no right. We had our own public hearing. We didn't have any problems with that. There are always going to be a few people that disagree with you. That is the way life is no matter who you are or what you are doing. The bottom line is again as Lance said, we had the fortitude and the foresight to see what was going to be in the future, not so much worrying about the day-to-day. You have to look at the big picture of things. Erdal forced this meeting because you know why, Erdal was jealous of Turtle Run because his city was going down and he had no money. I don't know why they didn't have any money because we are taxed to death. I know if I move to Boca, my taxes would be a lot cheaper than they are in Coral Springs. The bottom line is that he had a personal problem. When people have a personal problem, a personal issue, they lose
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focus and become delusional. They become delusional and all of a sudden what they think is not necessarily reality. What Erda! has is he had this hatred, so he tried to put this up there to try to kill it or try to rile people up. Why would you want to do that? How does that help you and your city? Now actually now that he is gone, and we have new people in the City, they actually think Turtle Run is great. They use it as a model. The other part of the City that they use is Eagle Trace, and if you look at Eagle Trace right now, it is falling down. I don't know what is happening to that place. The only three places in Coral Springs that ar,ybody with any knowledge of real estate would recommend you buy a house, there is no million-dollar homes here. We are becoming close to that with the bubble but actually, I am very proud of Turtle Run. I am very proud of what the Board did and again the taxes went down one year, nobody mentions that. We didn't raise any taxes for all these years and that is a fact. If you want to say anything else, you are just trying to throw mud against the wall and hope it sticks.
Mr. Pawelczyk: I think you need to get back on task at this point. All we are doing if you are finished with public comment on the budget, and then if any Board members want to move any line items, move numbers on the budget, that has to be done now so we can then vote on the Resolution. I think the first thing to do is ask if there is any further comment, not on the future of what we can't do, but on the budget itself that was published. That would be the first question. Is there any further comment on the budget? Now the Board can discuss if we need to make any changes at this time. I just want to remind the Board from my recollection, and I don't know if Julio was here, but I know the Board members were, we were going to try to finish all the current projects by vote that were still outstanding, and then you were going to come back and focus on prioritizing the remainder of the projects and then determine how to pay them.
Mr. Morgan: We voted on that.
Mr. Pawelczyk: You should probably start thinking about when you are going to do that, but I don't think that so much has to do with this budget unless you are going to move more money into the capital account. Frankly, you could do that at any time if you have money left over from this fiscal year. You could move all that money into the capital improvement account if you wanted to. If this meeting goes any longer you might not have any money left in the capital account in the overage account from fiscal year 2022.
That is a joke by the way.
Mr. Kapish: You could even use some of the money that is set aside for the emergency fund which is $600,000 or $500,000. That could be used as capital projects. It really could be moved over.
Mr. Pawelczyk: Does anybody from the public have any more comments on the budget? Hearing none I think a motion to close the public hearing would be in order.

On MOTION by Mr. Hohl seconded by Mr. Morgan with all in favor, the public hearing was closed.


	Consideration of Resolution #2022-04 Annual Appropriation Resolution

Mr. Pawelczyk: You can put forth a motion to adopt the appropriation resolution or if a Board member wants to change any of the numbers on the budget.
Mr. Morgan: We can just move it to different categories. Mr. Pawelczyk: At any time, yes.
Mr. Morgan: So, there is no reason to do it tonight. Mr. Pawelczyk: I agree.
On MOTION by Mr. Hohl seconded by Mr. Morgan with all in favor, Resolution #2022-04 Annual Appropriation Resolution was approved.


	Consideration of Resolution #2022-05 Levy of Non-Ad Valorem Assessments Mr. Pawelczyk: The next Resolution #2022-05 actually levies the operation and

maintenance assessment at the current assessment level. There is no increase and makes sure that gets put on the tax bill for the next year.
On MOTION by Mr. Hohl seconded by Mr. Morgan with all in favor, Resolution #2022-05 Levy of Non-Ad Valorem Assessments was approved.


	Motion to Close the Public Hearing


The public hearing was closed earlier during the Public Hearing after public comments and discussion.

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS	Consideration of Second
Amendment to Services Agreement with Florida COi, LLC

Mr. Carney: Number 8, consideration of second amendment to services agreement with COi. Everyone has that. We would need a motion to approve that?
Mr. Pawelczyk: This is the one for the scope of services for $57,768 that was presented at the last meeting per the recommendations of the Board, particularly Lance. We did make some adjustments to the amendment with respect to damages caused by the contractor and a payment schedule which we hope they will agree to. We changed that to the COD is supposed to pay 50% of the contract amount once all lighting is in working order for at least 5 days, then 30% by January 15th of 2023 and each January 15th thereafter and then the 20% will be made after we verify that we don't have any damaged costs that are incurred as a result of COi.
Mr. Kapish: How much is the total of the contract? Mr. Pawelczyk: $57,768.
Mr. Kapish: So we are increasing what we spent last year, and we had less of a budget because we are paying $36,000 more to BrightView, so our budget is $36,000 less but yet we are increasing the Christmas lights another $10,000 or $15,000. I like the lights myself, but I just don't understand how logically it looks to the taxpayers when we are worried about taxes that we are spending more on Christmas lights when we actually cut our budget by $36,000 and we are spending more on that item and not even completing projects. Just wanted to throw that out there.
Mr. Hohl: I think I would answer that by saying that the reason why it was such a lessor figure last year is because the main entrance was not completed and therefore, we did not do what we normally did. One thing that Turtle Run has been known for and you have said it yourself that it is one of the places that everybody wants to live. One of the things that we have been known for or one of the things that I was told by the City of Coral Springs even is how well Turtle Run does with their Christmas lights. Wait till you see their Christmas lights and I was very impressed with that. Last year we had a lot of
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inquiries and in cases, you could call them complaints and we had to explain that we had monument walls that didn't have electric. We had our feature that wasn't completed yet so we downsized intentionally because it didn't make sense to put lights up where we couldn't even power them. Now that the main entrance is able to take Christmas lights and if all goes well with the permitting process, our secondary walls will have everything completed, so by this holiday season we should be able to light up all of our entrances which is why it is at $57,768. In fact, that number was negotiated down from what they originally quoted us. That includes the contingencies that Lance requested to be added in the amendments to make sure that they would be liable for any damages and be able to repair them before they were paid the full amount.
Mr. Carney: Our Christmas lights in the past have been as high as $80,000. I think this package will be pretty complete. It will cover all the entrances, the oak trees at the entrance again which we didn't do last year. There is a lot that we did not do in the last couple of years because of the construction that we had going on. I think for what we have going on here with the COi package, I hope you had a chance to look at, it is pretty complete for that $57,000. I think it is going to look very nice.
Mr. Kapish: I know because I started the project Skip. Actually, what we did was we asked for donations from some of the businesses to put the Christmas lights up. That is how it started out. Then what happened was it grew to like anybody else like a homeowner puts up Christmas lights and then the next year they go to Home Depot and they buy $250 more of lights, and they add it up until the whole outside of their house is outlined with lights. That is how it starts. What I am saying is just as a reminder, a statement on the record is that when all this stuff about fiscal responsibility, it just, I don't know it is not quite there yet. Maybe you have to take a year or two off until you recoup, and the economy gets better, but it is just one of these things where that doesn't seem to apply. That is fine. That is just my point of view.
Mr. Pawelczyk: We can reduce the scope at this time. That is why we are here at this meeting. If you wanted to reduce the scope or not do this, now is the time to make that decision if you don't want to have Christmas lights at all. That is a Board decision. The only other item that we need a direction on was if you are going to move forward with the agreement there was, all lights and materials shall be installed by November 1st each
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year and lit and operating by what day, November what? You said you wanted them installed by November 1st, that never changed. I think COi was ok with that, but we need direction.
Mr. Morgan: When did we usually start them, about the first or second week of November?
Mr. Kapish: We usually have them lit up about two weeks before Thanksgiving.
Mr. Pawelczyk: You never had them lit on November 1st.  My recollection was a week before, but that was somehow lost or changed along the way.
Mr. Morgan: Let's say the 15th.
Mr. Carney: That will be before Thanksgiving.
Mr. Pawelczyk: I will just say the 14th in the document.
Mr. Carney: Other than that, do we agree with the package that is put forth? Lance, do you agree with it?
Mr. Morgan: It looked good to me.
Mr. Pawelczyk: I think you should take a vote because I didn't hear everybody. Say everybody's name just to make sure the record is clear.
Mr. Padilla: Eugene Skip Carney? Mr. Carney: Aye.
Mr. Padilla: Lance Morgan? Mr. Morgan: Aye.
Mr. Padilla: Zaida Karnegis? Ms. Karnegis: Aye.
Mr. Padilla: Chris Kapish? Mr. Kapish: Aye.
Mr. Padilla: Michael Hohl? Mr. Hohl: Aye.
Mr. Pawelczyk: Thank you.
On MOTION by Mr. Hohl seconded by Ms. Karnegis with all in favor, the Second Amendment to the Services Agreement with COi, LLC was approved.
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NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS	Update on Progress Report on 9
Monument Signs, Signarama and Electrical

Mr. Carney: Number 9, do you have pictures to show us?
Mr. Hohl: Just for those that are new to this meeting, there are multiple vendors that are doing the nine monument walls. To date, the electrical vendor has pulled their permits and has completed all of their work. The only thing that they weren't anticipating, neither did we is the electric at the intersection of Creekside Drive and Wiles Road was non-existent. .What had been there previously had decayed and so we had to do a directional bore underneath Creekside to connect the two sides and have the electric. Fortunately, we have that all covered in the contingency, so we are still within budget. The next phase of the project is Signarama with the sign. We had multiple versions that we looked at and we voted for one. The one that we voted on was sent to the City and City's design committee worked with Signarama multiple times and this is what the City has requested that this is what they would approve. The design community has approved this one. The change from our original design is initially the turtle was a multicolor figure like you see on the signage around the community. The City said that they didn't want that, they wanted more of a silhouette. There was also lighting around the outer borders which they took off. The part that will be backlit now is the words Turtle Run and those will be backlit with LED lights. In addition, the walls themselves as you can see currently have up lighting with LED lighting. The walls themselves will be lit along with the sign and words Turtle Run being backlit. Then of course there are sconce lights on either end of the walls that were replaced and are new LED lights. This is what the design committee has approved from the City, and it is now going through the rest of the permitting process. We wanted to bring this to you. Hopefully, the City will issue a permit based on the design committee's recommendation. The way that normally works whether it be an architect or a sign company, signs are a big deal in cities. The design committee has a lot of leeway as to what they think should or shouldn't be in a community. The fact that they approved something that is very close to our initial design is a pretty good accomplishment when it comes to city design committees. It is still I think it has the same feel of our original intent that we approved. This might be the final design, but we won't know that for sure until we
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have a permit in our hand and then we can say yes it is. I would not think that anyone else in the permitting process would overrule the design committee. Usually, they are the ones that have the say, when it comes to design for signs.
Mr. Morgan: Mike, is the turtle lit up?
Mr. Hohl: No, it is just Turtle Run. It is just back lit. Keep in mind that the up lighting will still be there so you will still be able to see the sign, it is just at nighttime the words Turtle Run will really stand out because they are backlit.
Mr. Morgan: The only question I have is that I like the design of the sign and everything, the dark green background I am not a color guy, when I go shopping my wife buys my clothes or I look for the giraffe to match with the giraffe is the green, I mean the color now is a light beige and is the green, is that what we want?
Mr. Hohl: That is what we had approved previously. If you remember we had a different version where we had a beige background and a green background.
Mr. Morgan: My only reservation is the green what we want? I know it stands out against the white letters and I guess that looks good, I'm good with that, I am just saying that is my only reservation I have.
Mr. Kapish: The old signs were actually if you try to mimic them, they were actually a beige background, and all the lettering was done in green. The turtle was in color so if we really trying to mimic them, it is not mimicking them at all. It is a different sign.
Mr. Hohl: We had that discussion previously and when we voted for this I made the motion, Chris seconded it and the motion passed unanimously for the green background. One of the things that I think we talked about was in the daytime this will really stand out a lot more. At nighttime with lighting on it, you are going to see it because it is lit up at night, but during the day I think the comment that was made was that this will really pop in the daytime where a lighter color could get washed out in the bright sunlight. Keep in mind if we change anything, we have to go back to the design committee and we are at their mercy as to whether or not they will even agree with that change.
Mr. Carney: Pull up the other one, the Turtle Run Shoppes one. That looks a little bit different than what we have here.
Mr. Hohl: This is what the City recommended. Remember originally we wanted all the signage to look the same. The City has said that this is what we have to put there.
Mr. Kapish: What color are the letters? Mr. Hohl: It is exactly as you see.
Mr. Kapish: White?
Mr. Hohl: Yes. They said that because the sign that is currently there is the same color letters that is what they wanted to see. At least that is what they are telling us, that is their comments. Where they got that idea from remains to be seen.
Mr. Carney: They got the idea from the Turtle Run Shoppes sign that is there now because of the flat wall. They wanted it to be a little bit different. The only problem is that you have one sign on one side of the wall and then one sign on the other side of the street and they are totally different.
Mr. Hohl: This is a project that we originally submitted for permit back in September of last year. That is how long, this is unprecedented that something of this nature would last that long in the city permitting process, something is not right that it would take that long. Again I think that we should continue with what the City is saying if we want to get anything done any time soon. We want to get these done. We want to have them totally completed before the holiday season so when we put our lights up we have our new signs.
Mr. Morgan: So what do you want? Do you want approval for that sign tonight?
Mr. Hohl: I think it would be a good idea for us to approve the change that the City has recommended or has requested or however you want to say it.
Mr. Morgan: Did you say they are in permitting right now?
Mr. Hohl: Yes. It goes to the DRC design review committee and then planning and zoning and then structural or building department approval. We are just waiting to hear back or Signarama is waiting to hear back with the permit number, and it is approved.
Mr. Morgan: How long will it take them to install it?
Mr. Hohl: Once they get the approval first, they will have to put us in their schedule for production so there is a timeframe. I don't remember what she said it was, but it was several weeks if not months, but once it looks like it is going to be getting close to the install, they will remove the old signs and they will prepare the walls to receive the new signs. The electric is already there. There is a box behind the wall that the sign company will connect to, to give power to the sign itself. Then once we have the old signs removed
while we are waiting for the new sign to be installed, that is when we are going to have the company come in and clean the brick walls, do any repairs that are necessary and seal them and then have the other company come in and clean the copper caps and polish them. They said that they will look like brand new copper when they are done. We will do that in between so that work is done before the new sign is put in, so we have no way of getting any chemicals on the new sign. The new sign meets the new codes. They are made of metal where our previous signs were made of wood. We originally tried to replace it with the same sign and the City said absolutely not. Then we said what about a composite sign and they said no, you can't do that either. The only thing that they said we could do was this metal sign. We were able to do that with the City's approval.
Mr. Kapish: What is going to happen when Wendy's well water which has already stained the entire back of that wall to the point where you can't get it off, does anybody have any forethought to try to solve that problem before you put a new sign up that is going to get well water all over it?
Mr. Hohl: I think that would be a good idea. I know we talked about looking at the landscaping which would also include the irrigation to make sure that it was correct for the new signage so if there are issues like that, then those need to be addressed.
Mr. Kapish: My question is has anybody talked to Wendy's?
Mr. Carney: I think if you redirect the sprinkler system as long as it not spraying on it, it is not going to get rusty.
Mr. Kapish: It is not our sprinkler system to touch. It is theirs. Mr. Carney: That conversation will have to be had then.
Mr. Kapish: I would think you would have that conversation before you put a new sign up.
Mr. Hohl: I think we will.
Mr. Pawelczyk: I think at this point you just need a motion if there is one out there. A motion to approve the design committee recommendation for monument signage as presented at this evening's meeting.

On MOTION by Mr. Morgan seconded by Ms. Karnegis with all in favor, a motion to approve the design committee
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recommendation from the City of Coral Springs for monument signage as presented was approved.
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TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS
	Attorney

Mr. Carney: Attorney?
 Staff Reports
Mr. Pawelczyk: I do not have anything on the agenda tonight. Next meeting we will do the presentation, Julio made the correct decision to move the presentation that I will give to the next meeting because he must have had a forethought that it was going to be a long meeting. We will talk about all that stuff at the next meeting. It should only take about 15 minutes outside of any questions. We will keep it to a minimum. Also, the legislative report, I don't know if they distributed that to you but that is also going to be on the agenda for the next meeting. We will go through that as well. Certainly, if the meeting gets long we can move either one of those items, but I will be prepared to present both at that 25th meeting. That is all I have.

	Engineer
	Updates on:
	20-Yr. Stormwater Need Analysis Submittal
	Requested Stormwater Information and Data from Hazen & Sawyer on behalf of Broward County
	Turtle Run Signpost Replacement
	Updates and Discussion of Cypress Pointe Flagpole Improvements Project

Mr. Geiger: Good evening. As the Board knows we completed the Stormwater Needs Analysis. We submitted that on the 29th of June and the County replied that they are in receipt of our submitted report. Since then, we haven't had any contact from them so obviously, they have a lot of work ahead of them compiling everything. We spent a half hour since the last meeting bringing the total time spent on the Stormwater Needs Analysis to 29 ½ hours. Our original estimate not knowing what we were getting into was 109 hours so we came in pretty much well ahead of what we thought, which means in the next five years it should be pretty much an easy task to take from an engineering perspective. Unless anybody has any questions on the Stormwater Needs Analysis.
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Mr. Carney: So that has been completed? Mr. Geiger: That is completed.
Mr. Hohl: And what was the final number?
Mr. Geiger: I spent 29 ½ hours but there may have been some additional time. I would have to check with my office to see if they expended anything, but normally when we were working on these since he was taking care of other Districts if we were looking at stuff together, he charged Cypress Cove or whoever else he was dealing with. It should be about 30 hours. Related to that, we did get a request from Hazen & Sawyer on behalf of Broward County for some additional information. It is kind of overlap information. They requested a whole bunch of GIS and Excel and CAD files for things like cross sections at the canals, water control structures, GIS information. Julio was nice enough to email them back to make sure that this was something that they needed or if it was relevant. They said if we didn't have the information readily available, then just not to provide anything. At this time, based on the list that they are asking for, we are not going to provide anything. We don't have the District's infrastructure and GIS. It is not something we were ever asked to do, so it is not something we have on hand. They said that was fine, just provide what we had. What they asked for there really nothing that wasn't going to cost money for us to produce in a timely manner for them. That is kind of where that stands. I know it was brought up at the last meeting about the request. I just wanted to let the Board know we are not addressing that. It wasn't a requirement from the County.
Mr. Pawelczyk: Hazen & Sawyer is Broward County's consultant. I think they are trying to gather information quickly and at no cost. We don't have the information so they will have to do it themselves probably. They did make a request on other Districts in Broward County as well that we represent, and which Julio's firm represents as well. They got the same answer.
Mr. Geiger: The next thing on my list is the signpost replacements. I actually really don't have any updates on that. I have not heard back from Mainnor. I reached out today. He did not get back as far as the frame material we are waiting on. I do know as of today they still have not; Horsepower still has not filed a single Notice of Commencement so they still cannot call their inspections. I emailed them multiple times about this as well as their permits are about to expire in a week. I have asked them to get those extended
because if they don't, they won't be able to call their final inspections. I have had absolutely no contact from them regarding any of this. At this point, I am still waiting for the project to get finished and I am still waiting for them to do what they need to do. I plan on calling their boss tomorrow or their owner Mike Martinez. I have been reaching out to the project manager and copying him on most of these items with no response back so tomorrow since I didn't hear back today, I am going to make a phone call and see what their plan is and if they have heard from Mainnor themselves since they do speak directly to him about the frame material. Since the initial submittal of their pay applications which I rejected, I have not heard anything about requesting a payment either. That is where we stand there.
Mr. Hohl: Is there anything else that can be done, GMS maybe also try to contact them or somebody else from your office?
Mr. Geiger: I am going to try to reach out directly to the guy Mike, the owner of the company to see if that is an avenue for me to get some headway on this. If they are just waiting on material I understand the delay with getting the frames up, but to let the permits lapse like this when I have asked a couple times, it puts me in a position where I don't know, like who do I go to facilitate that. I am hoping by getting him involved he kind of directs somebody to do what we are asking.
Mr. Carney: What happens if the permits expire?
Mr. Geiger: If they expire, they have to submit a request asking for them to be reactivated. Normally, pay another fee which obviously I wouldn't approve them charging the District for any of that if they let the permit lapse. Normally, outside of it lapsing they just have to write/send an email on company letterhead stating we need a permit extension due to x, y and z, if they said material delays, the girl Janice over there that I normally work with, she is very nice about a one-time extension on permits. We have never gotten one denied at Turtle Run, but it is the contractor's responsibility to keep their permits open for their jobs. At this point, they are going to incur a cost if they don't.
Mr. Pawelczyk: Make sure you follow up in writing even if you leave a message confirming your voice mail or whatever, your conversation.
Mr. Geiger: As far as anybody else in my company, I am the only person they deal with and the only person they really know at KCI. The other thing to look at and I don't
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know how the contract reads, I would have to go back in there, but there is probably some sort of delay monetary fee for being delayed. I know that is in a lot of contracts. You would have to go after them, and they are going to claim the initial delay was for Covid.
Mr. Pawelczyk: I think our goal is to get permits closed.
Mr. Geiger: Yes, that is where I am at as well. That is about all the actions I can take on that. The other thing I have on the list here is the Cypress Pointe flagpole project. At the last meeting, I was asked to come back to the Board with some proposals and quotes for the cost. Unfortunately, out of the six contractors I have reached out to, four declined to bid, one said they were going to bid but I have not received any documentation, and Florida Blacktop who I called today said they were working on it, and they would try to get it out today but did not. I do have a list of other fees that I have gathered as part of the research here. For the survey portion of this because this does have to go through permitting, the KCI survey would be $3,000 and that is for the CAD, for me to finish up the design, and the prints for permitting. The electrical engineering costs are going to be $4,750. That would include the electrical engineering design for the up lighting as well as construction phase services, shop drawing review, and helping with the permitting on that. The flagpoles themselves were at $15,846. That was from the flagpole company themselves. Their quote is no longer valid. We most likely need to have them rerun their numbers. Their quote was only valid for 30 days. I just didn't want to ask for another one if this was going to be delayed a little bit longer. That is something I can reach back out to the flagpole company about. The additional cost for KCI to get the drawings to a more building permit level and to get the construction phase services done as well as coordinate the permits would be $7,500. The electrician's cost was $4,530 but that did not include the LED light fixtures. Their proposal said the fixtures would be purchased and provided by the District. I could not find an accurate number on the fixtures we purchased last time but looking at the electrical cost estimation they were about
$2,000 a couple years back. We put a $2,500 per light number to that making it $5,000. The estimated permit fees are about $3,000. I am going to say $15,000 on the construction cost. That is an estimate we came to today based on the work Stanford did prior. I am looking at the size of the projects so that number I have not been able to get solid numbers back from a contractor, but we did look at what it cost to do this last time.
We marked everything up about 30% given the number of years that have gone by and what is going on with the construction costs these days. As of right now the project total estimate is standing at $58,626. That does not include any cost if the City decides all a sudden if this has to go through DRC as well which is a possibility when you are building on private property. Our walls had to go through DRC when we did those. The reason the flagpoles didn't the first time we did these, or the second time was that was an engineering permit, it was in the right-of-way. The City hasn't indicated DRC but occasionally when we submitted projects it will get to planning and zoning and the building permit review and they will go wait, we never looked at this in DRC, where is your DRC application? Between now and next meeting I am going to try to get a firmer feel for if this is going to have to go through DRC which would require additional time for engineering to submit the required information and make sure that gets approved by planning and zoning before going to building. So we are looking at about $60,000.
Mr. Carney: Is this two poles?
Mr. Geiger: This is two poles with the two up lights and the pavers.
Mr. Morgan: This is a project that I had met with Dustin Hoffman who was the previous HOA President for Cypress Pointe. We discussed numerous things that the COD could do for his community. Some of the things that he thought we could do we couldn't do because it was on private property and so on. We had focused on the flagpole because it was something we could do in the right-of-way. We do have an easement agreement with them in place. Here tonight is Mr. Parker Maiman. The Board has taken into consideration flagpoles from what we have dealt with before with Mr. Hoffman. He is no longer with the Board I guess for whatever reason. You just heard our engineer; he is our top guy. The improvement is going to be somewhere around $60,000. I don't know what else we can do for you, but is this something that your community wants, and is this something that this Board could facilitate for you? Can you speak on that, please?
Mr. Maiman: Absolutely. This is something that we are looking for. We are looking to be not quite uniform with across the street, but to incorporate flagpoles into a similar design. It is something that we are looking for and the only other thing that we could be coming to you to have done in the future would be if we are looking to do any sort of landscape renovation with that middle piece of property on the easement that we have.
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Other than that, this is something that we would really like to get. We have been communicating with our homeowners in our community telling them that this is something the COD will be providing. It is something that they are very excited about and hoping to see happen just to make us look a little bit more uniform and also blend in with the rest of the property that is part of the COD.
Mr. Morgan: Across the street in another location we have three flagpoles. Just for your understanding, the space available for us to put the flagpoles in is only going to allow us to put two flagpoles in.
Mr. Geiger: Correct, because we can't use the concrete portion.
Mr. Morgan: It does make it a little bit shorter. There was a discussion regarding you possibly moving your sign to another location. If that is possible that may free up some area, but as you can see, Mike told you we have been in sign review for almost a year now and it takes the City a long time to get new signs out. Is that any consideration as far as delaying the project or are you happy with two flagpoles?
Mr. Maiman: Absolutely, we would like to go forward with the two flagpoles. At this point in time, to move our sign is not quite feasible for us due to some other economic undertakings that we have right now, but we would like to go forward with the two flagpoles. That is something that I think would make our community members very happy that they have voiced to us. It would also make us look the part and also be happy with the upkeep of our community, especially at that front entranceway.
Mr. Morgan: $60,000 is a lot of money. I would say if you do possibly ever move the sign, we could possibly add a third pole sometime in the future maybe, I don't know when you see the expense. We would have to go through every one of these expenses again just for one flagpole so it might not be feasible to add anything else to make it three.
Mr. Maiman: That is absolutely good with us. We are not in a position right now to move that middle sign. We have some other undertakings that are on our private property to deal with right now that have a little bit more pressing need and concern. The two flagpoles are definitely something that we would like for now and the idea of a third flagpole would be very much in the future. It is not something that we are currently planning for or anticipating a request from you guys. What you guys are proposing with
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the two poles we would like to move forward to get that project done and approved as soon as possible.
Mr. Carney: Take into consideration if you ever want to do something with your sign that you have had many years, the City has changed the size of the signs so if you want to change that sign, they may not allow you to put such a large sign in. They reduced the size, is that correct Lance?
Mr. Morgan: Yes.
Mr. Carney: You have a big sign there now they may say well, you can only do
this.
Mr. Maiman: To be quite frank with you Mr. Skip, we have some extremely pressing
needs in our community that we have to commit our economic quotes to right now that we are not in a position to beautify our front sign at this point in time, and I don't see it happening for a few years down the road how that would be possible for us with what we are dealing with in terms of ensuring that our private property is to up to proper code and standards.
Mr. Carney: I know when Dustin Hoffman first came to the Board there was a lot of things that were discussed, landscaping, signs and we all agree that flagpoles would probably be the best thing because it ties the community together. You have flagpoles over here, flagpoles over here so I think that would be the thing. We are a government agency and typically we don't spend government money on private property. This is a roadway and there is an easement, and this is something that we could do.
Mr. Pawelczyk: Remember we have to amend the easement to allow for the flagpoles which is very easy because we are not changing the easement area. All we are doing is changing the purpose of the easement. It just says landscaping now so we would just do an amendment that adds flagpoles, pavers, and whatever else for the project.
Mr. Maiman: Is there any restriction on what flags, the US flag, and Turtle Run flag, and who provides the flags for the poles?
Mr. Morgan: We would maintain it because we have an easement. This District would maintain those flagpoles and flags. For your information also we would maintain those flagpoles and we would also maintain the flags on those flagpoles. In your case with two flags, it will be the National flag and the State of Florida flag.
Turtle Run CDD
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Mr. Maiman: Yes. That is something that we are looking for. As long as there is no requirement written into the specific type of flag and we have the leeway to go with the State of Florida flag or the United States flag or possibly even the Turtle Run flag down the road.
Mr. Pawelczyk: This Board would decide what those flags are but you can put a stipulation that it has to be one of those three but that would be up to this Board to determine what that is.
Mr. Kapish: I was just going to make a statement that Jonathan, I don't really think that the City is going to have the DRC approval. It is flagpoles. I understand that they might, but even if they do, I don't think it is going to be a long ordeal because a flag is a flag. It is not like it is a custom sign or something that they don't like.
Mr. Geiger: They made us do this for our brick walls which I didn't think we would have to go through DRC because it was a brick wall with no lettering or anything on it, so it is something I just wanted to caution the Board on. DRC Mike and everybody else knows it's process to get through. You can spend a lot of money trying to please the City. The only thing I did want to point out, I know we talked about the pavers and everything but that does add a cost to this project. The flagpoles can go in without the pavers and everything so this could be something to look at since we are having a hard time getting contractors to even give me pricing on doing the base work for the pavers. We have an electrician, we have an electrical engineer, we pretty much have everything in place to do the poles minus the pavers. That is another option to look at if this becomes a hard time getting a contractor on board with the base work and everything.
Mr. Carney: Well you have a paver guy right?
Mr. Geiger: I do not right now. The paver company is not going to come in and permit the project with Coral Springs, to excavate. There is a way to kind of cut the cost down a little bit and get this done.
Mr. Morgan: So your suggestion is to do what? Instead of pavers at this point have backfill and mulch?
Mr. Geiger: I am not suggesting anything. I am saying the flagpoles could go in without the pavers so if the Board wanted to proceed and if Cypress Pointe wanted to get this done and wanted the flagpoles, it is certainly a thing we can get that through
permitting without the paver being in if that is going to hold up moving forward with the project either from a cost perspective or a timeframe of getting a contractor.
Mr. Morgan: I would like to make a motion that we proceed with this project not to exceed $60,000, is that the number you gave me Jonathan?
Mr. Geiger: That is, and I will say that is based on a rudimentary estimate of the construction costs.
Mr. Pawelczyk: You would still bring proposals back for the Board to consider. I think Lance, and correct me if I am wrong, you just want to keep moving this project forward because Jonathan is incurring some costs.
Mr. Morgan: We want to move forward with it, well at least I do. We have a representative from Cypress Pointe that wants this.
Mr. Carney: The paver company that you recommended, I gave it to them, and they came back and dropped it on my desk here, so I just gave it to Jonathan, and it was
$2,600 for pavers.
Mr. Morgan: Jonathan's concern was compaction oversite. I hope that he can facilitate that.
Mr. Geiger: This is where they are going to put the pavers down on bare earth it looks like which we from an engineering perspective do not recommend because you are going to have all sorts of issues.
Mr. Morgan: You can get with him and clarify your needs and make sure he can facilitate it or maybe he can't.
Mr. Geiger: I can do that. This is all kind of broken out where if the Board wants to authorize KCI to do the survey, the electrical engineer to start the electrical engineering, and KCI to continue with the permit drawings and that's all up to a level to send to the City, you don't have to lock yourselves into a construction cost because we do have the proposal from KCI for $3,000 for the survey. You have a proposal from SEC Engineering for the electrical and I do have a cost that me and my boss put together for the additional work for the construction phase services from our perspective.
Mr. Morgan: So you could put the electrical and flagpoles in and come back at the very end basically and do pavers.
Mr. Geiger: We can do the design work now without the Board having to approve a not to exceed for the construction knowing that the design cost is not going to change based on a contractor's number. The flagpoles we are going to have to go back and check with the flagpole company to make sure those are still going to be the same. You don't have to rope yourself into the not to exceed that bigger dollar amount because we can just ignore right now the construction costs until we have a firmer grasp on that. Is that an appropriate way to approach this?
Mr. Pawelczyk: It would be Lance amending his motion to authorize moving forward with the flagpole project with respect to all the services to be provided as outlined by the District engineer.

On MOTION by Mr. Morgan seconded by Mr. Hohl with all in favor, a motion to authorize District Engineer to move forward with the flagpole project with respect to all the services as outlined by the District Engineer was approved.


Mr. Pawelczyk: Just to summarize the Board authorized the District Engineer to do all the legwork before you get a final price from a contractor. That final price has to come back to this Board anyway for approval. I assume someone will keep you all informed as to the status.
Mr. Morgan: You have my number right, Parker? Mr. Maiman: Yes.
Mr. Geiger: With the electrical engineering as well I spoke to Lance about this as of now that number would be if the District contracted directly with the electrical engineer. For KCI to have him sub onto us, there is going to be a markup as there normally is when we have to manage other consultants. I did want to also ask about that. Is the Board ok with the District contracting directly with SEC Engineering or do we need to go back?
Mr. Pawelczyk: How much is it for? Mr. Geiger: $4,750.
Mr. Morgan: That is in the price, right?
Mr. Geiger: That is their proposal. If they have to go to a sub, we have to mark it up because there is a lot of paperwork we have to do, and it is managing another consultant.
Mr. Morgan: I am fine with that.
Mr. Pawelczyk: Motion authorizing the District to enter into an agreement to be prepared with SEC Engineering for the electrical engineering services associated with the Cypress Pointe flagpole project.

On MOTION by Mr. Morgan seconded by Mr. Hohl with all in favor, a motion authorizing the District to enter into an agreement to be prepared with SEC Engineering for the electrical engineering services associated with the Cypress Pointe flagpole project was approved.


Mr. Geiger: I did have two other things. Last meeting you asked to kind of put a date to the easement atlas being completed. I spoke with survey. They have let me know that the latest it will be is at the October 10th Board meeting, we will be able to include that in the agenda so that gives us 90 days from now. They are anticipating getting that done prior, but they have committed themselves to a 90-day timeframe to do that. The easement atlas should be or will be included in the October 10th Board meeting agenda one way or the other.
Mr. Hohl: This is for this project that we are working on?
Mr. Geiger: This is an easement atlas. It is a collection of all the easements. It is an easy way for the Board and Management to know where a landscape easement is or a drainage easement and everything. I don't think we furnished one to the District since 2010 so it will be an improvement on what we have.
Mr. Hohl: So basically, it is an updated map of where our easement is.
Mr. Geiger: The other thing when I was in the District today I did notice there is a pothole on Creekside and Turtle Run Boulevard. It looks like it was where the City had patched around a water main lid. I wanted to know if management was aware of it and if that is something that either me or GMS needs to figure out what happened there with the City and who is responsible for that. I am not sure how the maintenance of the roads work if the City did something?
Mr. Pawelczyk: I assume if they damaged it they should repair it.
Mr. Kapish: It is coming apart. They repaired it and now it is coming apart. My suggestion is that you contact the City and have them put a concrete collar around that pipe because otherwise, you are just going to have more asphalt peeling away. I looked at it, it looks very thin. It looks like they didn't put much asphalt actually down.
Mr. Morgan: Who did the repair originally? Mr. Kapish: The City.
Mr. Geiger: They did something with the water main lid over there. Mr. Kapish: The bottom line is that patchwork.
Mr. Geiger: It is going to become an issue; it is down to the lime rock now.
Mr. Kapish: It is not as thick as our streets were paved. Why would they repair that with basically, it looks like a half inch?
Mr. Geiger: Is this something more suited for engineering to do is that a management issue?
Mr. Kapish: Somebody has to do it.
Mr. Pawelczyk: Talk to Julio. I would think management can handle that. Mr. Geiger: That is all I have.
Mr. Carney: Ok.
	Field Manager - Tropical Plant and Pest Control Service - June Report

Mr. Szozda: Real quick on the Tropical Plant and Pest Report, the overall quality of the property is really good. There is a stress fungus on the median just east of the roundabout and Rusty treated that. A couple other quick items. The palms on the roundabout have been trimmed. Two dead trees were removed, one on Turtle Run Boulevard and one on Creekside. Shawn finally came through and sanded the park area. I think he put a new net too if I am not mistaken. He carved out some of the play areas and put down additional sand. That is taken care of. We did meet with Gary regarding the conditions of a couple of the lakes and addressed areas with him. Hopefully, Pete will take care of that.
Mr. Carney: Anything else? Mr. Szozda: No sir.
July 11, 2022
Turtle Run COD



Mr. Kapish: I have a question for you. I guess apparently you guys went to Walmart and went around with the manager or something like that.
Mr. Szozda: Yes, we had their district reps from Orlando come down actually and we basically did a drive-around and showed them the quality of our property and then took through the Target plaza, the Burlington Plaza and gave them an idea of what we think they should be representing. They were respective. We put together a little package for them with photos of everything we have and what they should have and don't. Hopefully, we get them moving in the right direction.
Mr. Kapish: What type of package are you talking about?
Mr. Szozda: Pictures and just kind of a description of what we would like addressed per their lack of turf, lack of maintenance in their parking lots, the debris that is constantly out there. One of the comments one of the gentlemen made was we represent our stores basically based on the surrounding area. We took them around the surrounding area, and I think he got an idea of what we are looking for. Hopefully, this is going in the right direction.
Mr. Kapish: That was about two months ago? Mr. Szozda: About a month ago.
Mr. Kapish: How are the results?
Mr. Szozda: We are putting together the final touches on this. We are going o send them a flash drive.
Mr. Burgess: He said he wants us to be as detailed as possible because that is the only way that Walmart is going to move forward.
Mr. Kapish: How much time have you guys put into this?
Mr. Szozda: It is probably about a few hours. It wasn't anything major. The drive around with them was probably a better part of an hour and then we went over there and took a few additional pictures. Patrick has been working on the main part of it.
Mr. Kapish: Who instructed you to do that?
Mr. Szozda: It was an agreement that the one eyesore basically, the one property is not being maintained is the Walmart property and I think it is obvious to everyone that lives in Turtle Run that they just don't maintain it properly. It was more of a suggestion.
Mr. Kapish: I understand that.
Turtle Run CDD
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Mr. Szozda: They were responsive.
Mr. Kapish: What I wanted to ask is that seems to be Mike, maybe you can clarify this, but that seems to be out of the realm of the COD going over to a private business property spending COD manpower employees time whatever cost on a problem that is really not the CDD's prevue?
Mr. Pawelczyk: I don't really know what this entails. I know we talked about it at the last meeting and there were no comments, but I thought that there were some easements in front that weren't being maintained or it didn't match what was behind it.
Mr. Szozda: Part of those easements are under our tutelage, so Jonathan went out there, we marked it off so part of it is our responsibility.
Mr. Kapish: I understand that.
Mr. Pawelczyk: Some of the garbage is flowing into our property. Mr. Morgan: Those trees are ours?
Mr. Szozda: Yes.
Mr. Carney: Those live oak trees belong to the District.
Mr. Kapish: We have no authority and reason to be on that property really with COD personnel because it is not a prevue of us. We wouldn't be doing that. I am not blaming you. It is not your fault; I am not saying it has anything to do with you. Just throwing this out there. If we were to go on everybody's property and to examine and see what their deficiencies are and come up with some kind of plan, that is really not in the prevue of the COD when we are expending money on private property. We don't do that. The issue is I said I am not blaming you; I am blaming whoever told you to do that.
Mr. Szozda: We just happened to look at it and they were receptive. Mr. Carney: They were basically embarrassed.
Mr. Kapish: But Skip, we shouldn't be doing that, and you know that.
Mr. Hohl: Well, let me ask you this, who should be doing it if the COD shouldn't be doing it?
Mr. Kapish: It is the responsibility of the Foundation.
Mr. Hohl: And why hasn't the Foundation done it? Who is in charge of the Foundation?
Mr. Kapish: I am the President of the Foundation.
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Mr. Hohl: And you haven't done anything about it.
Mr. Kapish: Yes, I have done things about it for a while.
Mr. Hohl: If you had, then we wouldn't have this conversation I would think.
Mr. Kapish: When we send out notices to homeowners on your street, they don't correct their mistakes either. It is the same type of thing.
Mr. Hohl: Stuff hasn't been done. We see that there is an issue. Our management sees that there is an issue. We had a big discussion about who is responsible for cutting the trees and we looked into that to see who is responsible and that is where this information is coming from.
Mr. Kapish: We were responsible for the trees, and we did it.
Mr. Pawelczyk: If the Board wants to direct that Pat stop doing this, then the Board can so direct it, but it is my understanding that they are just sending the information to Walmart to see if they will do something.
Mr. Szozda: Exactly.
Mr. Kapish: My concern is really this Mike, is that we have a budget and everything else and our focus should be on the COD.
Mr. Pawelczyk: Again, you can make the motion to direct that so that is not done but no additional is my understanding, is being spent on this, it is just part of the field manager. You lose 1 ½ hours of time from their work.
Mr. Carney: No additional dollars. Mr. Pawelczyk: It is up to you guys.
Mr. Kapish: It is just inappropriate. Anyway.
Mr. Carney: Walmart is an eyesore to the community, there is no question about that. It has been like that for ten years.
	Manager - Consideration of Proposed Fiscal Year 2023 Meeting Schedule Mr. Padilla: The only thing that I see that stands out is September 25, 2023, it is

Yorn Kippur, everything seems to fall pretty much in place.
Mr. Pawelczyk: Do you want to leave it as the 25th or do you want to move it to the


Mr. Hohl: I would make a motion that we move the scheduled meeting from the 25th to the 18th of September 2023 so that it does not fall on Yorn Kippur.
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Mr. Pawelczyk: And approve the meeting schedule for Fiscal Year 2023.



On MOTION by Mr. Hohl seconded by Mr. Morgan with all in favor, the Proposed Fiscal Year 2023 Meeting Schedule with the meeting date change from September 25, 2023 to September 18, 2023 was approved.


Mr. Morgan: I have something for Julio. Mr. Padilla: Yes, sir.
Mr. Morgan: One of our neighbors that I was talking to is here tonight, Rob Shipe. He complained to me in the discussion that I had that the website was hard to navigate. Is that so much what you said?
Mr. Shipe: Yes, it is not friendly. I think some of the emails and everything are out of date.
Mr. Morgan: I want to direct staff to do what you can to update it or do whatever has to be done. If anybody has any other information.
Mr. Carney: I agree.
Mr. Morgan: But bring it up to 2022 standards. I don't know when the last time we examined it. Whatever you have to do so residents can interface with it a little bit more easily.
Mr. Padilla: Thank you for bringing that up.
Mr. Hohl: I think two things that we have done recently that weren't there before is approval of the minutes in a timely fashion and posting of the minutes on the website which were not there before, so thank you for that.
Mr. Pawelczyk: If I can just touch on that real quick. Remember the ADA lawsuit that we had a couple years ago, I just want to explain to some of the residents the reason you don't have a fancy website with a bunch of bells and whistles is one of the reasons is costs, it keeps the cost down. The other reason is CDD's had to and local governments particularly without the means to do so had to adjust their websites because of ADA issues because people who are sight impaired couldn't navigate the website. In other words, the websites and the information on the website, for instance, a PDF, there is
special software where you can pull your mouse over it and it will read what the PDF says or if you go over a picture it will say what the picture is of. That is why you don't have as much information as I guess most Boards would like to put on their website which is all of their records. I want to remind you that if you want records, maps or if you want something the Board discussed, those are public, and you can ask Julio's office for those. There is actually an email for records at gms.com or something like that. You can request those records and they will send you a PDF.
Mr. Morgan: The other thing in our discussion revealed he probably flies a million miles a year, but he had an issue with possibly how far away this meeting is from Turtle Run. I don't know what can be done about that. I just want to expose that because those were the two issues you brought up during our conversation. Is there anything that we can do? You see that this area is convenient. We have this and other things. The other alternatives that we have had in the past are hotels off State Road 7 and other Clubhouses like Coral Bay. We could use their Clubhouse, but we don't have access to copiers, data information, or screens, so it makes the meetings a little bit more complicated. I know Parker has volunteered his Clubhouse, but still for staff to bring and have everything available to us is kind of hard.
Mr. Kapish: They actually have limited parking, that is a problem. Mr. Maiman: The option is open.
Mr. Morgan: But anyway, is there anything on that Mike?
Mr. Pawelczyk: Well, the meeting has to be held in the County and has to be open to the public. If GMS could find a place closer you can do so.
Mr. Morgan: Or the Board could find a place but every time you use a hotel it is like $400 or $500. If that is an option and we might be able to make it at Cypress Pointe, it would be a lot closer for me.
Mr. Carney: How many does your Clubhouse seat?
Mr. Maiman: It is pretty open so we can bring in chairs and so forth. Usually our Board meetings have five Board members. We usually get about 20 to 25 residents.
Mr. Morgan: It is a pretty good size, but he has limited parking. That is the issue.
Those are some issues that we talked about.
Mr. Pawelczyk: You could explore with this new city administration. The previous administration I don't think they could guarantee a spot. Remember we have to advertise our meeting schedule a year in advance. My recollection was the City couldn't really guarantee one of their facilities for a year.
Mr. Kapish: That is correct.
Mr. Hohl: We could change the location on certain nights if the City wasn't able to accommodate us. We could still do that.
Mr. Pawelczyk: You could do that; you just have to advertise a special meeting. You would have to advertise a new meeting in the newspaper that nobody reads. You would incur that $500 cost or whatever it is to advertise a special meeting.
Mr. Carney: How much parking would you have?
Mr. Maiman: In the front of our community we have about ten spots. If we did open up the gates and open up our guest parking, we have parking behind our gates. We would just have to speak with our property manager about what those options are.
Mr. Pawelczyk: It would have to be open so anybody from the public would have to be able to get in there. No restrictions to get into Cypress Pointe to get to that Clubhouse. I don't know if he wants his gates open.
Mr. Hohl: A hotel is still an option, just an expense. Mr. Morgan: That is all I have.
Mr. Pawelczyk: The other thing that you could do is you could have meetings like this, like we had the public hearing on the budget today or if we have a meeting you could schedule, I have one or two Boards that will schedule the meeting at a location that might be more expensive, but more convenient for the residents or a time that is more convenient for the residents to attend in case they wanted to show up. The reality is with respect to the residents that are here if they are like me, they go to the first meeting, and you don't see me then. I follow up with my represented Board members for my community. The reality is you just don't get a lot of attendance no matter where or when your meetings are. Sometimes Boards find it helpful to at least offer that option once a year or twice a year to remind the residents that they are still there. That is up to you. We can explore that at any time you want to.
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ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS	Financial  Reports
	Financial Report on Capital Projects, Emergency Funds, Capital Reserve and All Other Financial Issues

Mr. Carney: Financial Reports. Nothing has really changed. We are still sitting on
$193,000 outstanding for unfinished projects. We have $550,000 still remaining in capital.
Mr. Morgan: How much?
Mr. Carney: $550,473. The $193,000 takes into consideration that Horsepower's charges are still in there at about $60,000 and about $126,000 for the signs. $550,000 still remains in the capital, that hasn't changed at all.
Mr. Morgan: And what do we have in the emergency reserves?
Mr. Carney: $500,000. That is pretty much a flat number. That has been staying pretty constant.

TWELFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS	Supervisors Requests
Mr. Carney: Supervisors requests, Mike anything?
Mr. Hohl: Yes. What is the latest report on what you were working on Chris with the main entrance? I know we had voted to have an attorney take a look at it and put a letter together to send to the contractor and the architect telling them what the issues are and giving them an opportunity to fix those issues, where are we at with that? Do you know?
Mr. Kapish: They have the letter, and they have a certain time to respond. Mr. Hohl: When was that letter sent?
Mr. Kapish: I don't have the date.
Mr. Hohl: Do we have a copy of the letter that can be sent to us? Mr. Kapish: I am sure the attorney does, sure.
Mr. Pawelczyk: I sent him an email earlier this week I believe and asked him for a copy, and I haven't heard back. I haven't seen it.
Mr. Morgan: Can you get a copy of that Julio? Can you contact them? Mr. Padilla: I will contact them.
Mr. Hohl: What was the timeframe that was given for them to respond, because right now we don't really know. It is not you; it is special counsel. It is something we should be made aware of.
Mr. Pawelczyk: I think that is what Julio will do, get that letter because I told them that it should be sent to Julio and copies on any correspondence so that if it is something that should be shared with the Board it can be. I think that is more or less what my email said to him, right? It was probably Thursday; it wasn't like a week ago. It was pretty resent. Mr. Hohl: Just for the public that is here tonight. We had already had an expert review done as to what is wrong with the front features and a quote to fix it. We opted to first explore this legal route to see if the people who built it would fix it. If they don't, we have to make a decision as to whether or not it is within our best interest financially to pursue any further legal action or fix it ourselves. Up until this point we have paid to have the front walls constructed and there have been two or three occasions where the architect came back and said well, if you make this fix it will improve it, so we approved to make that fix at our expense and unfortunately, everything that they said would work didn't work. Now we are trying to see if they are willing to fix their issues at their expense before we expend any more money. We want to know if that is even an option and if it is, if they will take care of it then it is taken care of. If they don't take care of it, then what are the financial responsibilities that we have if we do move forward with any legal action as opposed to if we just fixed it ourselves. What would the difference be? Again, we are trying to be as prudent as we can with how we are spending the taxpayer dollars, but none of us on the Board and I think I can speak for everyone, we are not pleased with what the final product has been. The fountains are not working, they are still leaking. They were never sealed properly in those pools. Hopefully, we will come to a resolution
sometime in the near future.
Mr. Carney: Anything else? Mr. Hohl: No.
Mr. Carney: Lance?
Mr. Morgan: Yes, to pick up on what Mike said, they are leaking today even though they are not running. I understand we had to have them turned off for a while. They do work for our residents that don't know. They do work. We could turn them back on tomorrow if we wanted to, however, the lawyer and the experts said to keep them off during this period so maybe one day we will turn them back on until we figure this out. They do work, it is just that they leak. That is the main problem. One thing I want to bring
up is Jonathan the next time you are in Turtle Run, I want you to look at the pavers that the COD put in at 65th Avenue, at 43rd Court, and 41st Street. At two of those locations the 43rd Court and the 65th Avenue, the pavers in the roadway have failed. There are big dips in the roadway. I don't know if the original vendor that put in the roadway, 41st Street is not that bad.
Mr. Geiger: 65th Avenue is pretty bad though.
Mr. Morgan: In your experience is that the shelf? What is that failing there? Mr. Geiger: It could be any number of things. How long ago was that put in? Mr. Morgan: 2008 or 2009 I believe.
Mr. Geiger: It could be any number of things. I know with the paver projects we have done recently the District has learned that you do have to add sand over time or else you do get washout and stuff. It might have just been neglected maintenance; improper compaction is normally the culprit especially if you are getting a localized dip. If it is near the header curb you often get to where that is a lot more stable in the surrounding area, so the pavers take all the load and are going to settle first. Worst case it could be an irrigation line broke somewhere under there, leaked out. I know we have dug up the road before because of dips and didn't really find a leak of any sort, but another water intrusion will cause the washout of material under there.
Mr. Morgan: This Board and Mike, could you possibly find this out for us as we entered into an agreement with the City back in those days, 2009 to excavate those streets and put in brick pavers. It is our responsibility to take care of it. That was the agreement. It is their roadway. The two entrances have been in pretty good shape for a while now, and we need to, that is a maintenance item, and we need to go ahead and start working on that.
Mr. Geiger: I would imagine it is probably maintenance, so you just want me to take a look at it to see our opinion on what we think could be done? It is most likely just going to have to be pick the pavers up, bring in more fill that needs to be brought in, compaction, and put them back. As with all of the issues that we have encountered that are under the ground, until you kind of open up the ground if you are willing to do it, you are not going to know.
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Mr. Morgan: A local paver guy came in and said it is this that and the other thing and he is probably a very capable man. However, we need to have you look at that.
Mr. Geiger: This is all the Estates entrances correct? Mr. Morgan: Yes.
Mr. Geiger: I know they have pavers at Hidden Lake as well, but they maintain
those.
Mr. Kapish: I did speak with Stanford about those entrances. He has seen them
and a lot of that goes back to both those ins and outs, a lot of them are straight ahead or turns. When you turn the vehicle, especially when you are making a right-hand turn into the community, a right-hand turn out of the community, the turning radius of those tires puts pressure on certain points. If you notice those potholes are mostly by the outgoing, by the stop bar. That is where it is at and so in order to avoid all that is to have the pavers done in a certain pattern, a herringbone pattern. Then also too, that may be build more concrete in that area is what he suggested. Maybe making the sidewalk go across and have more concrete at the entranceway so when that car turns, it is not fully turning that tire right on the pavers.
Mr. Geiger: So, they are carrying the sidewalk through to act as a bigger path. Mr. Kapish: That would be more of a lifetime fix.
Mr. Geiger: I know that from when we did the main entrance pavers, even the paver company said you are going to get much tighter and less likely to move around with the herringbone as opposed to, I believe these are the bigger block.
Mr. Kapish: If you go back to the roundabout, the roundabout is on the outside, it has a concrete band around there and you drive over that band all the time which locks the pavers in around the roundabout, and it locks the pavers in on the section that goes east or west or north. Those are all locked in a small area. It is a little bit harder for those pavers to shift and turn when you have them a little bit tighter, that is why in some areas and it's probably what should have been done in the main entrance is we should have had every so often have a concrete band that would have locked those in. Now you have a long area that is not locked in and eventually, they will be shifting. That is something that probably needs to be looked at.
Mr. Geiger: I can look at it. I believe from my recollection you go from an F curb to a valley gutter coming around in there. It might be something to look at. Maybe some of the curbing has to be addressed to kind of hold stuff in there or like you said carry the sidewalk through it. I can take a look at them all. I know they are all each going to be in a different shape here.
Mr. Morgan: Can you take some photos and bring them back to the next meeting? Mr. Geiger: Yes.
Mr. Morgan: Julio, did you prepare this document? Mr. Padilla: No.
Mr. Morgan: Does anybody know who prepared this document? Mr. Carney: I did.
Mr. Morgan: Ok.
Mr. Carney: All the numbers.
Mr. Morgan: I am not disputing the numbers.
Mr. Carney: This is just for the Board's information.
Mr. Morgan: The 72% tax increase that we have to equal up to 119% tax increase for the last thirteen years, we financed the bond, and this is for everybody. We financed a bond of $8,000,000 without raising taxes one penny. That is just a fact. Skip, what are you going to stipulate to that? We took the carryover money that we had for years, and we did major projects for it, and you are going to appreciate this project. We spent upwards to I don't know how much for lake bank restoration. We had no money. Our budget is about $1,600,000 or $1,700,000 a year to operate all of Turtle Run. The landscaping alone is about a $500,000 chunk of that give or take. $350,000 or $400,000 just to mow the grass yearly, 16,000 sprinkler heads, 5 or 6 pump stations, the infrastructure is incredible in there. We hired a construction company out of Palm Beach, and we have a lot of lakes in Turtle Run and you live on the biggest one, Lauren Jackson and when you are in your backyard you see what we call geotubes. The lake banks were all eaten away by erosion. For several years there we did lake bank restoration for all the main lakes where there were houses sitting on those lakes. You benefited from that. I don't live on the lake, I wish I did, and I didn't benefit from that expenditure. It was hundreds or thousands of dollars. Skip lives on a partial lake. He benefited from that and
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anybody here that lives on a lake benefited from the geotube. That is what we needed. We needed infrastructure repair that had broken down. We did some other things like fountains in the lakes and some amenities and so on. If you want to say that we had a 72% tax increase because we kept the carryover money to restore our infrastructure which was broken down, if that is how you want to consider it Skip since you prepared this document, then I will wear that badge of courage because that is what we did for the people. Not me, I don't live on a lake. I got nothing out of that. The $800,000 we spent for lake bank restoration was for infrastructure. Most of us didn't benefit from that. We did other things in the community where the people benefited, the residents. Mr. Shipe, we go under the powerlines every night. I see Mike out there sometimes with his dog. That Passive Park under the powerlines was developed by one person, his idea, Mr. Kapish. I enjoy it. I pay taxes for that. Everybody in Turtle Run, the Grove people, anybody who lives anywhere in Turtle Run gets to enjoy the Passive Park. The roundabout and the upgraded park, all the things that we have done over the years, all the residents in Turtle Run get to enjoy those amenities that we have. That is why people want to live in Turtle Run. That is why people want to come and walk down our streets. At nighttime, it makes me so proud at 6:00 or 7:00 in the evening when I see dozens of neighbors out there walking their dogs under the powerlines. We utilized that property, so these are the projects we did. That was probably bond money, but I am just saying we used that
$400,000 carryover year after year to improve the infrastructure of Turtle Run. That is why our infrastructure is top-notch right now. It is not old, the pump houses are new, everything is going to take us to the next 20 years. You got to have a foresight to want a property like that because if you don't, once the property starts dipping down. There are three or four reasons why property starts dipping down, one is the maintenance items. You can drive all through Coral Springs there are dozens of dead communities in Coral Springs that none of would probably move to. It is just the way it is. We are proud of our maintenance schedule. We are proud of the amenities that we have and yes it costs a little money at the end of the day, but that is what it costs and that is why people want to live here. Thank you very much.
Mr. Kapish: I wanted to add to what you were saying was that money, that carryover really wasn't a whole lot of money to do a whole lot with. We could never have
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put streetlights in with that money. Actually, by negotiations with people that developed the Target, money we got basically $2,500,000 of improvements and stuff into the community. That roundabout was paid for, basically, a lot of the roads were paid for with the Target money and that kind of thing. That money was not tax money, it was basically money negotiated with the people that developed Target. That brick wall that is behind the Target which was built by the Target people, not the COD, and the question was whose was it? Well, that was all part of the negotiation. I know everything that was in the contract, everything that was negotiated all the way down to the mallard ducks because I wrote it. When that came up about that wall who owns it, I stated that Target owned it, but instead, I guess Jonathan you spent time researching it again, we are spending money for something that actually all they do is ask somebody a question like what is going on with that and you get your answer. There is no reason to have staff spend a lot of money and time of their own when they could be spending time on Turtle Run things. Again, I am not upset with you, I am upset with the process because basically, your time is much more valuable to spend on Turtle Run stuff than anything else. When you have CDD's and HOA's you work together to further the goal of everybody's ideas. Talking to them is good, when you don't talk or just ignore them, then that is when bad things happen and nothing good happens out of it. Communication is everything. That is really what is lacking in Turtle Run right now.
Mr. Carney: On that note, I just asked Mike for a copy of the agreement and that is how we found out whose responsibility it was for the wall. Right Mike, you gave me the lake swap agreement when I requested. There wasn't any work put into that. Anyway.
Mr. Hohl: I have a question going back to the entrances to the Estates and the brick pavers, who put those brick pavers in? Did the COD do that?
Mr. Geiger: I have no clue. That was before my time.
Mr. Pawelczyk: I think the COD did that under a license agreement with the City of Coral Springs. That is a city street.
Mr. Morgan: They wouldn't enter into an agreement with the HOA because the HOA is a private corporation. This government body entered into an agreement with the City to do that work. Dennis supervised it.
Mr. Hohl: Ok.
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Mr. Pawelczyk: There were multiple areas that we did. Mr. Morgan: They did some other work someplace else.
Mr. Geiger: There were some additional I thought it was that license agreement. Mr. Pawelczyk: Yes, it is not just in front of the Estates.
Mr. Morgan: I have one question for Pat. How did the meeting on the pavers go with the crossover out at 66th?
Mr. Szozda: Good. A very nice gentleman. He seemed very knowledgeable. It went
well.
 

Mr. Morgan: He is going to do the right job, cut the tree roots?
Mr. Szozda: Yes. There is a proposal here. I just got it before the meeting. It is all
in there. He broke it down pretty thoroughly.
Mr. Carney: Jonathan I thought that was the pavers for the light pole. Show that to Lance, please. That was his pavers for his. I misunderstood, that goes to Lance.
Mr. Geiger: That is not for the light pole then. Mr. Carney: I just realized what it was.
Mr. Geiger: Either way it is a contact for the pavers. Mr. Carney: It is a small job.
Mr. Morgan: Can we to the next meeting? Is it ready to go? Mr. Geiger: This is on you guys.
Mr. Morgan: What is this process Pat?
Mr. Szozda: He wants to cut out all the tree roots, put a base, level it off. You know how they put the border around these pavers. He doesn't do that. He concretes underneath so you don't see the border, but it holds them in place. It is a different concept.
Mr. Morgan: Is he going to compact it? Mr. Szozda: Yes.
Mr. Morgan: Shell rock?
Mr. Szozda: I think everything is on there.
Mr. Geiger: It says remove brick pavers and sidewalk, remove roots, prepare ground, install pavers. It doesn't say anything about anything going under the pavers except for prepare ground. I would take that right off the back as just compaction not seeing any material on here.
Mr. Szozda: We can find that out. I would assume that you would have to put some base in there.
Mr. Geiger: He is only supplying concrete, sand and silica sand for the pavers. I would venture to say this doesn't include anything under the pavers.
Mr. Morgan: How thick is the cement mix?
Mr. Geiger: I am not familiar with the way they are talking about doing the pavers. I have seen it done before. They set them on top and kind of have the concrete off to the side right and it gets buried.
Mr. Szozda: He says he puts it underneath the pavers, and it locks them in place.
Mr. Morgan: One of my neighbors had a knee replacement and it is pretty wobbly out there and was concerned after his double knee replacement crossing over that. We have to have that fixed. I would say maybe we could do a not to exceed amount, add some room into it.
Mr. Szozda: I will verify that he will put, what kind of base do you want? Is there a specific base Jonathan?
Mr. Geiger: I think on the other paver projects we have done in the District, especially for walking paths, we have done six inches of lime rock. I can get you the detail sheet with the Passive Park and the other paver areas especially if you are going to have people walking on it. It really does prevent excess rain from washing things out. I know the District with the liability they take with these projects it is better to put a little extra money and do it right than have someone trip and fall.
Mr. Morgan: That is what concerns me. Did he say what kind of time frame on this? Mr. Szozda: I think he can get it done pretty quickly.
Mr. Morgan: What was the proposal for?
Mr. Geiger: This one right here was for $2,680.
Mr. Morgan: If we do a do not exceed maybe for $3,500 that is a little bit of room for him to come in and do the lime rock or what Jonathan is talking about. Can you get with Pat about that?
Mr. Geiger: Yes.
Mr. Morgan: We will put a little bit more room in that.
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Mr. Geiger: The other thing with the way he is proposing to do these, I don't know if that concrete cement acts the base to lock things in.
Mr. Morgan: I put a motion on the table not to exceed $3,500 for him if he has to add lime rock or whatever and if not we go with $2,600 as per Patrick's estimate.
Mr. Kapish: What kind of pavers is he using?
Mr. Morgan: That is why it is so cheap because I think we are going to use the pavers.
Mr. Szozda: He didn't reuse those, but I took them out to the paver pile, and he goes yes, I can use those.
Mr. Morgan: It is to match the ones across the street there. It is the ones that are at the main entrance the clay pavers.
Mr. Carney: That has been there a long time.

On MOTION by Mr. Morgan seconded Mr. Hohl with all in favor, a not to exceed amount of $3,500 to repair the pavers at the crossover at 66th Avenue was approved.


Mr. Geiger: Is the little area from the cul-de-sac? Mr. Hohl: Yes.
Mr. Geiger: Ok.
Mr. Morgan: That is all I have.
Mr. Carney: Ok, a motion to adjourn.
THIRTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS	Adjournment
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Assistant Secretary/S
On MOTION by Mr. Hohl seconded by Mr. Morgan with all in favor, the meeting was adjourned.


